# Fees Paid by Jail Inmates:

Fee Categories, Revenues, and Management Perspectives in a Sample of U.S. Jails

U.S. Department of Justice National Institute of Corrections Information Center

Report Prepared by Barbara Krauth and Karin Stayton Connie Clem, Editor

December 18, 2005

This material was prepared by LIS, Inc., NIC Information Center contractor, under contract J1C0C-038 with the U.S. Department of Justice, National Institute of Corrections.

## **Contents**

About This Study	. 1
Project Method	. 1
Summary of Key Findings	
Notes on Statutory Authority to Charge Fees	
Limitations of the Research	
Organization of this Report	
Organization of this Neport	. 4
Data on Program Fees	. 6
Work Release	. 8
Substance Abuse Testing	9
Weekender Programs	
Electronic Monitoring	
Community Service	
G.E.D. Testing	
Other Program Fees	
Other i Togram i ees	'-
Data on Non-Program Fees	15
Fees for Medical Services	18
Medical Office Visits	20
Physician Visits	
Nurse/LPN Visits	
Pharmacy	
Dental Examinations	
Dental Care	
Eye Care Examinations	
Eye Care Prescriptions	
Telephone Usage Fees	
Per Diem Fees	
Booking Fees	
Photocopying Fees	
Barber/Hair Care Fees	
Bonding Fees	
Release Escort Fees	
Other Non-Program Fees	35
Administrative and Management Issues	36
Most Effective Fees	36
Least Effective Fees	
Agency Evaluations of Costs/Benefits	
Methods of Tracking Fee Collections	
Methods of Tracking Fee Collections	JJ
Conclusion: Making Fees Count	40



## **ABOUT THIS STUDY**

The National Institute of Corrections (NIC) Jails Division and Information Center initiated this study in the summer of 2005 with three purposes:

- To explore the extent to which local jails are charging fees to jail inmates,
- To learn the actual amounts of the fees that are being charged and the revenues that are being generated, and
- To learn jail managers' views on the effectiveness of charging fees.

The study follows a 1997 survey by NIC of the nation's largest jails on state statutes granting authority to assess fees and actual fees being collected at that time.

#### **PROJECT METHOD**

Information for this report was obtained through a written survey instrument that was made available to small, medium, large, and mega-jails nationwide. The project was announced to members of NIC-hosted e-mail discussion groups focused on jail issues (the Large Jail Network and the State Chief Jail Inspectors groups) and on general corrections concerns (the NIC Corrections Exchange group, also known as "correx"). An invitation to participate was also featured on the NIC Web site home page at http://www.nicic.org, and a web page was created as a home page for the survey. On it, agency staff who wished to respond were asked to download the written survey questionnaire, complete it, and fax or mail it to the NIC Information Center. The survey materials are included in Appendix A.

Project staff also sent e-mail messages to state-level points of contact in agencies and organizations with a jail focus, where available, such as state jail associations and sheriffs' associations, and asked that the survey be brought to the attention of county and local sheriffs' offices and detention agencies. These invitational messages included attached copies of the survey questionnaire and instructions for replying. Staff also faxed the written survey response package to randomly selected sheriffs' offices and local justice agencies in some states where a single, state-level point of contact could not be identified.

Survey respondents were asked whether their agencies collect, or are considering collecting, fees for participation in a variety of programs (such as work release or electronic monitoring) and for non-program services (such as medical care or room and board). They were also asked the amount of the inmate fee in each category and the total 1-year revenues for 2004. Additional questions explored the results of any cost-benefit evaluations that have been conducted by responding agencies and managers' perspectives

on which types of jail inmate fees are considered to be the most and least effective for agencies to implement.

Responses were received from 224 respondents representing jails of all sizes<sup>1</sup>:

Small jails (inmate population less than 50):
 72 responses

• Medium jails (inmate population 50 - 249): 91 responses

■ Large jails (inmate population 250 – 999): 33 responses

Mega jails (inmate population 1,000 or more): 22 responses

Statewide systems, or a single response for all jails in a state: 3 responses

Other (agency or facility size not confirmed)
 6 responses

#### SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS

Survey responses indicate that 90% of the jails that responded are currently charging jail inmate fees. Of the 224 survey responses, 202 jurisdictions charge fees to inmates for at least some programs, functions, or services.

- Most agencies charging fees impose them for more than one function or service, but seven (7) agencies charge inmate fees only for medical services, and three (3) charge only for participation in work release.
- Many of the agencies that currently charge fees in at least one category are also considering assessing fees in other categories.
- Inmates are most commonly charged for prescriptions (121 responses, or 59% of the responding jails that charge any fees), physician visits (119 responses, or 59% of those charging fees), and participation in work release programs (117 responses, or 58% of those charging fees).
- The largest amount of revenue reported was from inmates participating in work release programs (\$10,149,061). The second largest revenue-generating category was per diem charges (\$7,213,000), followed by telephone calls (\$4,464,689).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Sizes of responding jails were identified through the American Correctional Association's 2005 Jail Directory. Size designations are those used by the Association, and individual jails may have moved from one category to another since the survey was conducted, depending on precise inmate population numbers.

- Of the 202 responses that indicated fees are charged, 17 agencies (8.4%) have conducted a formal evaluation of the costs/benefits and net outcome of assessing inmate fees. Five of these agencies identified no net benefit from collecting fees. The other 12 agencies indicated that the findings of their evaluation showed a net monetary benefit.
- Respondents indicated that the *most effective* fee was the fee for participation in work release.
- Regarding the effectiveness of both per diem charges and fees for medical services, opinions were split; that is, these fees were listed as *least effective* nearly as often as they were called *most effective*.
- Recommendations for making inmate fees count focused especially on the role of medical fees in reducing frivolous medical visits, the importance of understanding the costs/benefits of fee collection prior to establishing a fee collection policy, and the importance of making inmate fees "reasonable."

#### **Notes on Statutory Authority to Charge Fees**

Unlike the 1997 NIC survey on the topic of fees paid by jail inmates, this survey did not specifically request information about the statutory authority to collect fees. However, several respondents to the current survey provided related state-level information:

- New York jails are not allowed to charge fees, except for a percent of earnings from work release. However, work release fees are not currently being collected by any New York jail.
- The North Dakota respondent noted that jails in that state can collect up to \$15 a day for work release and up to \$10 for each medical office visit; no information was provided on actual practice by jails in the state.
- Indiana has a statute allowing a county to charge up to a \$15 medical co-payment if this policy is adopted and implemented by a local ordinance. Amounts debited to the inmate trust account must be written off after 60 days. There is also a statute that permits the county to charge an inmate for the cost of his incarceration.
- A Wisconsin statute provides that the sheriff is to collect paychecks from jail inmates participating in work release programs and then disburse the funds as specifically directed by statute.

- Oklahoma has a statute providing that an inmate can be charged for incarceration but must be determined capable of paying the court before fees can be assessed.
   When such fees are assessed, they are collected by the court.
- An Illinois statute specifically allows for the collection of some fees.

Summary tables for program fees and non-program fees appear on pages 7 and 17, respectively.

#### LIMITATIONS OF THE REPORT

The data presented in this report do not reflect a representative national sample. Responses were received from jurisdictions in 28 states and the District of Columbia, with some responding states represented far more than others. For example, 38 responses were received from counties in Oklahoma but only 6 from California, 1 from Texas, and 4 from Florida, all much larger states in which there are both more jails and more large and "mega" jails. Project findings suggest that larger jurisdictions are more likely than smaller jurisdictions to assess jail inmate fees, so different results would have been obtained if more large jails had responded to the survey.

In cases where more than one response was sent from a single jurisdiction, the more complete response was used here. In some instances, surveys were incomplete or illegible; in such instances, as much information as possible was included.

It should also be noted that, though a high proportion of the jails that responded to this survey are actively collecting fees, this does not suggest any conclusions about the prevalence of inmate fees among jails nationally.

Despite these limitations, the report provides substantial information on jails' current practices related to charging inmates for programs and services.

#### ORGANIZATION OF THIS REPORT

This report summarizes data on fees collected for program participation and for non-program functions. Presenting information on each category of inmate fees, the report provides a summary of the data on the extent to which responding agencies are collecting fees in the category, the number of agencies considering collecting fees in the category, and the total revenues reported by all respondents to this survey.

The report first presents all data on all fees imposed for program participation, followed by data on non-program fees. A table provided for each category lists the basis of the fee (e.g., a one-time fee, a co-pay, a daily fee, etc.), the range of fees imposed, and the most common fee for that category.

The report concludes with a discussion of cost-benefit evaluations that have been conducted by responding agencies and a summary of respondents' perspectives on which types of jail inmate fees are considered to be the most and least effective for agencies to implement.

Appendix A presents the survey materials. Appendix B gives response data from all responding jurisdictions that collect fees, presented by fee category. Notations include information on jurisdiction size (based on the American Correctional Association's 2005 Jail Directory), gross annual revenues (where reported) for each fee, and additional details on collection methods if provided. Data on types of fees that are charged to inmates in fewer than 20 agencies are not included in the Appendix.

## **DATA ON PROGRAM FEES**

In this project, a "program fee" is a fee charged to jail inmates who are participating in a program that is not a basic element of jail operations, or who are receiving a program-related service.

- Programs that allow eligible inmates to leave the jail to work, for example, are attractive to many jail inmates and also benefit the jail by bringing in revenue to offset the jail's budget. Inmates who participate in programs of this type also may be better able to support themselves and their families and can continue to contribute to tax rolls, both of which have benefits for the community.
- By successfully participating in substance abuse treatment, for example, other jail inmates may be viewed as being better prepared for re-entry into the community, in jurisdictions where the sheriff or detention agency has authority for the discretionary release of jail inmates in response to crowding or other factors.

Table 1, page 7, summarizes survey responses related to program fees in rank order by their prevalence among the responding agencies. Following the table, program fee details are reported in the same sequence. This section begins with the program category for which fees for participation are most often imposed (work release) to programs for which fees are seldom imposed (such as jail industries and substance abuse treatment).

Data summarized for each program category include:

- The number of responding agencies that charge this fee, and this number expressed as a percentage of responding agencies that charge any fee;
- The number of jurisdictions that are considering charging this fee; and
- An indication of how frequently the fee is collected by an entity besides the jail, such as probation/parole or a private agency.
- Tabulated findings on how the fee is assessed (e.g., daily, weekly, percent of revenue, etc.), the range of fee amounts being charged by responding jurisdictions, and the most commonly charged fee, plus any additional interpretive notes, where applicable.

Table 1. Program Fees Ranked by Prevalence in the Response Sample

FEE CATEGORY	NUMBER OF AGENCIES ASSESSING THIS FEE	REVENUES
Work release	117	\$10,149,000
Substance abuse testing	45	148,000
Weekender programs	43	900,000
Electronic monitoring/house arrest	39	2,913,000
Community service	14	495,000
G.E.D. testing	12	525
Jail industries/jobs programs	4	266,000
Substance abuse treatment	2	54,000
Vocational aptitude testing	2	Not available

#### **WORK RELEASE**

Number of agencies charging fee: 117 (58% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 3

A nonprofit or community corrections agency collects the fee: 3

Total revenues reported: \$10,149,061

Table 2. Fees for Participation in Work Release

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Daily Fee	71	\$5-55	\$15
Weekly Fee	5	\$97.85-140	\$125
% of Gross Income	10	20-30%	25%
% of Net Income	8	20-25%	25%
Sliding Scale	11		
Not Specified	12		

Note: Some agencies charge additional fees, such as an initial administrative fee at start-up, in addition to ongoing fees for participation. A flat fee may be charged up front, prior to participation, sometimes in conjunction with a separate start-up fee.

## **SUBSTANCE ABUSE TESTING**

Number of agencies charging fee: 45 (22% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 1

A community corrections agency or private provider collects fee: 2

Total revenues reported. \$148,527

**Table 3. Substance Abuse Testing Fees** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
By Test	33	\$4-60	\$15
Fee Charged for Positive Tests Only	2	\$5-16	
Weekly Fee	3	\$2.50-15	
Monthly Fee	1	\$30	
Work Release Only	1	\$5	
Not Specified	5		

#### **WEEKENDER PROGRAMS**

Number of agencies charging fee: 43 (21% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 5

The probation department or court collects the fee: 2

Total revenues reported: \$900,396

**Table 4. Fees for Weekender Programs** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Daily Fee	29	\$8-40	\$20
Weekend Fee	5	\$40-105	\$40
One-time Fee + Other Charge	6		
Not Specified	4		

## **ELECTRONIC MONITORING**

Number of agencies charging fee: 39 (19% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 6

Community supervision agencies or private providers collect the fee: 11

Total revenues reported: \$2,912,767

**Table 5. Fees for Electronic Monitoring** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Daily Fee 22		\$2.90-22	\$20
Weekly Fee	2	\$97.85-140	
% of Gross Income	2	20-25%	
Sliding Scale	9		
Not Specified	4		

## **COMMUNITY SERVICE**

Number of agencies charging fee: 14 (7% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 3

Community supervision agency or non-profit collects fee: 3

Total revenues reported: \$495,426

**Table 6. Fees for Participation in Community Service** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Daily Fee	6	\$7-60	\$15
Sliding Fee Scale	2	\$8-40	\$40
Actual Cost	1		
Not Specified	5		

#### **G.E.D. TESTING**

Number of agencies charging fee: 12 (6% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 1

Probation/parole, GED tester, school, or non-profit charges the fee: 7

Total revenues reported: \$525

**Table 7. Fees for GED Testing** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
By Test	2	\$7-60	\$7
One-time Fee or Fee/Class	4	\$50-60	\$60
Not Specified	6		

#### OTHER PROGRAM FEES

Survey results indicate that fewer than 5 agencies charge fees to inmates in the following program areas identified on the survey questionnaire:

- **Jail Industries/Jobs Programs.** Four (4) responding agencies charge fees to participate in these programs, and one (1) agency is considering such a fee; total revenues reported: \$266,505.
- **Substance Abuse Treatment.** Two (2) agencies charge fees for substance abuse treatment programs, and one (1) is considering doing so; total revenues reported: \$54,744.
- Vocational Aptitude Testing, Certifications, etc. Two (2) agencies are charging fees for tests and certifications related to employment, and one (1) agency is considering doing so. No data on revenues were reported.

Agencies also noted that they charge inmates fees in the following write-in categories:

- Work/educational furlough.
- Art program participation.
- Day reporting.
- Work crew.

## **DATA ON NON-PROGRAM FEES**

Non-program fees are those that are assessed in relation to everyday facility operations and services. Agencies typically assess these fees against all inmates who receive the specific services, but they receive payment only from those inmates who have the resources to pay. Jails do not deny services to inmates who cannot pay. Agencies have different approaches to collecting fees from inmates who are indigent or who may move in and out of the jail over time.

Inmate fees discussed in this section of the report have four main purposes.

- **To offset administrative costs.** Examples include fees for the intake booking process and for release of inmates on bond. These fees are generally easy to collect, either from funds the inmate has when entering the facility, or by creating a negative balance in the inmate's commissary account that is then repaid as funds become available. In Michigan, a state statute makes it a civil infraction not to pay the booking fee. In Washington State, however, there is a current challenge of a jail's right to take fees at booking without a hearing on the grounds that this is a Constitutional violation of the right to due process. If charges are dismissed, dropped, or not filed, the jail must refund the fee. A few agencies charge booking fees only to sentenced inmates. Some agencies receive booking fees from other justice agencies, such as local law enforcement, for accepting their detainees.
- To offset the costs of housing inmates. "Pay-to-stay" or "per diem" fees for daily subsistence are often taken from the inmate's account on a daily basis. They can cover food or housing separately, or both. Because many inmates are indigent, however, this type of fee can sometimes be hard to collect. A few survey respondents noted that their per diem charges are actually a result of political pressure from the public.
- To offset the expense of high-cost services and deter frivolous use. Charging inmates a fee or co-pay for medical services is becoming increasingly common, as reflected in survey results. The revenues anticipated from collecting inmate copays or fees for medical services are not the principal reason most jails charge such fees, however. In most instances, they hope the fees will reduce unnecessary sick call visits as well as cover a small portion of the costs of care. Although the practice of collecting fees for medical services is growing, it has been somewhat controversial. In general, however, courts have not found it unconstitutional to

charge inmates a co-pay fee for medical services as long as medical services are not denied if an inmate is unable to pay.<sup>2</sup>

To offset costs of providing other routine services. Because fees for services such as telephone calls, haircuts, and photocopying are collected before the inmate can access the service or at the time of service, agencies find them easy to collect. All such fees do not usually go to the agency itself; for example, jails most often receive a commission on phone calls from an external contractor, and fees for haircuts sometimes go directly to the barber.

Table 8, page 17, summarizes survey responses related to non-program fees in rank order by their prevalence among the responding agencies. Following the table, program fee details are reported in the same sequence. This section begins with the areas in which fees are most often imposed among the survey sample (medical care and telephone use) and continues through those in which fees are less often imposed (such as laundry and check processing).

Data summarized for each program category include:

- The number of responding agencies that charge this fee, and this number expressed as a percentage of responding agencies that charge any fee;
- The number of jurisdictions that are considering charging this fee;
- An indication of how frequently the fee is collected by an entity besides the jail, such as probation/parole, a private agency, or a service provider;
- The total 2004 revenues reported in that category by survey respondents; and
- Tabulated findings on how the fee is assessed (e.g., daily, weekly, etc.), the range of fee amounts being charged by responding jurisdictions, and the most commonly charged fee, plus any additional interpretive notes, where applicable.

16

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See discussion in the position statement of the National Commission on Correctional Health Care, "Charging Inmates a Fee for Health Care Services," online at http://www.ncchc.org/resources/statements/healthfees.html.

Table 8. Non-Program Fees Ranked by Prevalence in the Response Sample

FEE CATEGORY	NUMBER OF AGENCIES ASSESSING THIS FEE	REVENUES
Medical care (Including several sub-categories of services; see p. 18-27 for details)	121	\$1,506,000
Telephone use	87	4,465,000
Per diem (Including comprehensive per diem fees plus separate food- and housing- specific fees)	77	7,213,000
Booking	73	4,346,000
Photocopying	69	137,000
Barber / hair care	52	31,000
Bonding	33	631,000
Escort	31	28,000
Notary service	20	303
Laundry	12	136,000
Check processing	5	6,000
Detoxification on intake	2	25,000

#### FEES FOR MEDICAL SERVICES

A variety of medical care fees were reported by agencies in the survey sample. The survey requested information on any of the following medical services categories in which jails assessed a fee or co-pay:

- Medical office visits (i.e., general medical care: from sick call to any other type of medical visit, if tracked in one category by respondents' agencies);
- Physician visits (if tracked as a separate fee);
- Nurse/LPN visits (if tracked as a separate fee);
- Pharmacy prescriptions;
- Eye care exams and optical prescriptions;
- Dental exams and dental care.

Jurisdictions vary widely in how they charge and account for inmates fees in these categories. For example, some jails charge different fees for visits with a nurse or physician, while others simply charge for "medical office visits," which includes both categories of care. In some cases, jails assess a single "medical fee" that includes a broad range of services, including pharmacy, dental care, and eye care.

Moreover, it is clear from survey responses that the accounting system in most jurisdictions combines many or all categories of medical services. Some agencies that indicated they charge separate fees for different medical services also reported only one overall revenue figure. Thus, the following section on medical services simply reports the information as received and the total revenues reported for all medical categories combined are reported. For specific jurisdictions' details, see Appendix B.

Timing and the specific circumstances of fee payment also vary. In some jurisdictions, a small co-pay is charged at each visit to a medical service provider. Some jurisdictions noted that outstanding medical fees from a prior time in jail are collected upfront at a later booking. Some of these variations are in the fee profiles that follow.

Though medical fees are one of the largest categories of fees in this study in terms of the number of agencies that collect them, they are not ranked very high in terms of the revenues that were reported. Reasons for this include:

About one-third of the survey responses from agencies that collect medical fees did not include a figure for annual revenues from these fees, and separate data on pharmacy revenues were reported by just over half of the agencies that collect them. If these revenues were included in the report, the total could be somewhat

higher. It is unknown from the survey data whether revenue figures are not tracked by agencies or simply are not readily reportable in the breakdown requested in the survey questionnaire.

- Some of the inmate medical care fees/co-pays being reported had been in place for less than a year.
- Fee/co-pay amounts for inmate medical care tend to be small, reflecting their partial intent as a low-threshold deterrent to inmates' making frivolous sick calls.
- Collections of medical fees/co-pays can be low, reflecting high numbers of indigent inmates in the jail.

Table 9. Number of Agencies That Charge Jail Inmates for Medical Services

TYPE OF MEDICAL SERVICE	NUMBER OF AGENCIES CHARGING A FEE/CO-PAY
Medical office visits (general)	115
Physician visits (as a separate fee)	119
Nurse/LPN visits (as a separate fee)	90
Pharmacy prescriptions	121
Dental examinations	94
Dental care	96
Eye care examinations	51
Eye care prescriptions	50

Fee summaries in this section include:

- The number of agencies charging a fee;
- The number considering charging a fee; and
- An indication of how frequently the fee is collected by an entity besides the jail, such as a medical or dental services provider.

A summary table for each medical service category indicates the basis of the fee (copay, actual cost, etc.), the range of fees charged by responding jurisdictions (where available), and the most commonly charged fee.

#### **Medical Fees: Medical Office Visits**

Number of agencies charging fee: 115 (57% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 8

Number of jurisdictions in which the local health department collects the fee: 1

Revenues reported from all medical services combined: \$1,506,301<sup>3</sup>

**Table 10. Medical Office Visits** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	86	\$3-31	\$10
Actual Cost	10		
Not Specified	14		
Other approaches*	5		

\*Other approaches include: charging different in-house fees and off-site fees (2 agencies); charging a \$10 fee unless the visit is an emergency; collecting 50% of incoming money from inmates who have open medical expense accounts; and charging 100% of what insurance doesn't cover for a visit to an outside facility.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The revenues reported are from all medical services combined, as jurisdictions often do not track (or did not report) funds received under individual categories. A large number of respondents reported a single revenue total for all medical fee categories.

## **Medical Fees: Physician Visits**

Number of agencies charging fee: 119 (59% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 10

The local health department or medical provider collects the fee: 2

**Table 11. Physician Visits** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	99	\$3-31	\$10
Actual Cost	11		
Not Specified	6		
Other approaches*	3		

\*Other approaches include: a \$5 charge for scheduled appointments and \$10 for non-scheduled appointments; a \$5 charge unless the inmate is referred by the nurse to the physician; a fee for an initial visit, but not for a follow-up visit (2 agencies); a fee to see a specialist, but such fees cannot exceed \$125/year.

#### **Medical Fees: Nurse/LPN Visits**

Number of agencies charging fee: 90 (45% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 7

Number of jurisdictions in which the local health department collects the fee: 1

Table 12. Nurse/LPN Visits

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	79	\$2-35	\$5
Actual Cost	5		
Not Specified	3		
Other approaches*	3		

\*Other approaches include: an initial \$4 co-pay, but no charge for follow-up appointments or emergency; a \$5 fee for pretrial inmates and the actual cost for sentenced inmates; and a \$5 fee for scheduled appointments and \$10 for non-scheduled appointments. (1)

## **Medical Fees: Pharmacy**

Number of agencies charging fee: 121 (60% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 8

Collected by health dept. or included in court costs: 2

**Table 13. Pharmacy Fees** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Per Prescription	82	\$1-15	\$5
Actual Cost	24		
Not Specified	13		
*Other Approaches	2		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches: A \$5 charge for pretrial inmates and actual cost for sentenced inmates; and 100% of what insurance doesn't cover for outside facility.

#### **Medical Fees: Dental Examinations**

*Number of agencies charging fee:* 94 (46% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 7

Fees are collected by health department or provider: 3

**Table 14. Fees for Dental Exams** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	63	\$3-50	\$10
Actual Cost	18		
Not Specified	9		
Other Approaches*	4		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches include: 100% of what insurance doesn't cover when inmate goes to an outside facility (2 agencies); dental care included in the fee for dental exams; and a \$5 charge for pretrial inmates and the actual cost for sentenced inmates.

### **Medical Fees: Dental Care**

Number of agencies charging fee: 96 (47% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 6

Health department or provider charges fee: 3

**Table 15. Dental Care** 

FEE BASIS		RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	51	\$3-50	\$10
Actual Cost	22		
Type of Dental Work	3	\$5-70	
Not Specified	15		
Other Approaches*	5		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches include: a prepaid dental care fee for inmates; inclusion of dental care in medical office visit fee or dental exam fee; a \$5 charge for pretrial inmates, and the actual cost for sentenced inmates; and 100% of what insurance doesn't cover for care outside the facility.

## **Medical Fees: Eye Care Examinations**

Number of agencies charging fee: 51 (25% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 5

**Table 16. Eye Care Examinations** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	28	\$3-50	\$10
Actual Cost	15		
Not Specified	5		
Other Approaches*	3		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches include: inclusion of fee for eye care in medical office visit fee; a \$5 charge for pretrial inmates and actual cost for sentenced inmates; and 10% of money received in an inmate's account is deducted after billing fees to the prison.

## **Medical Fees: Eye Care Prescriptions**

*Number of agencies charging fee:* 50 (25% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 5

**Table 17. Fee for Eye Care Prescriptions** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Co-Pay	22	\$3-16.10	\$15
Actual Cost	20		
Not Specified	4		
*Other Approaches	4		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches: fee is included in medical office visit fee; a \$5 fee for pretrial inmates and the actual cost for sentenced inmates; 100% of what insurance doesn't cover for care outside the facility; a monthly fee for prescriptions; a \$10 charge for new prescriptions and a \$5 charge for renewals; and prescriptions are sent to an outside provider.

#### FEES FOR TELEPHONE USE

Number of agencies charging fee: 87 (43% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 0

Total revenues reported: \$4,464,689

**Table 18. Telephone Fees** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Per minute	19		
Collect Calls	21		
Prepaid Phone Card	11		
Not Specified	17		
Combination of Approaches	19		

Respondents' descriptions of their agency's method of charging telephone usage fees to inmates did not always make clear exactly how fees are charged. In most cases, however, the agency contracts with a jail telephone service provider. Under a variety of contract types, these contractors provide and maintain equipment and charge inmates a surcharge on their calls. A portion of the phone surcharge is a source of revenue to the agency. Inmates access telephone use in a variety of ways, and they sometimes have a choice of whether to use a prepaid phone card or to place collect calls, which are also subject to a surcharge.

# "PAY TO STAY" FEES: PER DIEM CHARGES, FEES FOR MEALS, AND FEES FOR HOUSING

Number of agencies charging any type of pay-to-stay fee:	77 (38% of responses)
Number of agencies charging comprehensive per diem fee:	67
Number of agencies charging for meals only:	4
Number of agencies charging for housing only:	6
Number of agencies considering fee:	8
Fee is collected by the court:	1
Total revenues reported for per diem charges:	\$5,969,285
Total revenues reported, fees for meals only:	\$689,354
Total revenues reported, fees for housing only:	\$555,836
Gross revenues reported in this category:	\$7,214,475

**Table 19. Per Diem Charges** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Daily fee	51	\$1-60/day	\$20
Sliding fee scale	6		
Charge for sentenced inmates only	4	\$18-20/day	
Charge for out-of county inmates only*	1	\$32/day	
Amt. not specified	5		
Fee for meals only	4	\$2/day	\$2/day
Fee for housing only	6	\$1-50/day	\$50

<sup>\*</sup> Though reported as an inmate fee, this fee is likely paid by another justice agency.

#### **BOOKING FEES**

Number of agencies charging fee: 73 (36% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 18

Total revenues reported: \$4,346,183

#### Table 20. Booking Fees

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Per booking event	64	\$3-168	\$10
Sentenced inmates only	3	\$25-30	\$30
Not specified	4		
Other approaches*	2		

## \*Other approaches:

- The regular inmate fee is \$89.12; the Federal inmate fee is \$69.33.
- A \$15 fee is charged when inmates enter the jail and another \$15 when they leave the jail.

Though the survey was specifically focused on fees paid by inmates, some of the larger fees reported in this section appear to be fees paid by another justice-related agency, such as a local law enforcement agency that delivers detainees to the jail to be booked.

#### **PHOTOCOPYING**

Number of agencies charging fee: 69 (34% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 2

Total revenues reported: \$137,193.61

**Table 21. Photocopying Fees** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
By the Copy	61	\$0.05-\$2	.25
Not Specified	3		
Other Approaches*	5		

<sup>\*</sup>Other approaches: Some agencies charge a fee only after a certain number of pages or charge a higher fee for the first copy than for additional copies. Others charge only for specific types of materials.

#### **BARBER FEES**

Number of agencies charging fee: 52 (26% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 2

Fee is collected by the barber: 14

Total revenues reported: \$31,011

#### **Table 22. Barber Fees**

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Flat Fee	40	\$0.75-\$15	\$10
Not Specified	12		

#### **BONDING FEES**

Number of agencies charging fee: 33 (16% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 2

Number of other entities charging fee: 1

Total revenues reported: \$631,214

Table 23. Bonding Fees

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Per bonding release	28	\$3-37.50	\$20
Not specified	5		

#### RELEASE ESCORT

*Number of agencies charging fee:* 31 (15% of responses)

Number of agencies considering fee: 1

Total revenues reported: \$28,497

**Table 24. Release Escort Fees** 

FEE BASIS	#	RANGE OF FEES	MOST COMMON FEE
Actual Cost *	12		
Hourly Rate	5	\$18-145	
Flat Fee	4	\$50-240	\$100
Not Specified	10		

<sup>\*</sup> Actual costs are determined in different ways. Factors assessed by individual agencies typically include travel mileage/vehicle use fees and coverage of escorting officer salaries or both their salaries and fringe benefits. One agency imposes additional fees based on the security level of the inmate.

One respondent described a flat fee that covers two security officers for a 4-hour period. Another agency charges an hourly fee of \$33 for an officer escort, with a 4-hour minimum. Fees are sometimes paid directly to off-duty officers or must be paid by the inmate's family prior to the event.

Release escort enables inmates to leave the jail for short periods of time for purposes such as specialized medical appointments and family events (e.g., funerals).

#### OTHER NON-PROGRAM FEES

Responding agencies also charge fees in a variety of other categories. Twenty (20) or fewer agencies cited fees in each of the following categories:

- **Notary.** Twenty (20) responding agencies collect a fee for providing this service, generating revenues of \$303. One additional agency is considering charging this fee.
- Laundry. Twelve (12) responding agencies charge laundry fees, reporting total revenues of \$136,336. Two (2) additional agencies are considering charging a fee for this service.
- Check Processing. Five (5) responding agencies are charging a fee for check processing, and another two (2) agencies are considering charging this fee. Total revenues reported were \$6,510.
- **Detox Related to Intake.** Two (2) responding agencies charge a fee for this service, generating total revenues of \$25,000.

Fewer than five (5) of the responding agencies charge inmates fees for the following non-program categories:

- Bounced checks;
- Lost keys;
- Mental health visits;
- Bus transportation;
- Laboratory work, specifically 1) DNA testing, and 2) court-ordered laboratory tests;
- Handbook fees;
- Lock fee for personal clothing; and
- Postage.

### **ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT ISSUES**

In addition to learning about the specific jail inmate fees being assessed, this study also sought to gather jail managers' perspectives on the effectiveness of charging fees.

#### MOST EFFECTIVE FEES

Survey participants were asked to identify the fees that their agency is *best* able to collect or that staff administrators consider effective and worthwhile. The following fees were most frequently cited as the "most effective":

- Work Release Fees Identified as most effective by 72 agency respondents. Representative comments:
  - o "Work release fees are the easiest to collect because we use a form that explains to inmates that they will have to pay \$5 for each day they work. If they refuse to pay, we do not release them to work."
  - o "Work release fees are effective because they are paid in advance."
  - o "Payments are taken directly from checks before inmates receive them."
  - o "Because it is a court-ordered fee, it is easy to collect."
- **Booking Fees** Identified as most effective by 44 agency respondents. Representative comments:
  - o "Fees are collected at the time of booking or there is a commissary balance to the negative until paid."
  - o "Booking fees bring in revenue with little staff effort."
  - o "The booking fee is small, so most inmates are able to pay."
- **Telephone Fees** Identified as most effective by 27 agency respondents. Despite the large revenues raised through telephone fees, few respondents commented about these fees. Representative comments:
  - o "Inmates make collect calls or debit calls from block phones. We get a percentage of all calls."
  - o "We get a commission from the phone vendor."

- o "The fee is collected automatically by the outside vendor or inmates make collect calls."
- Medical Fees Opinions on the effectiveness of medical fees were split. Although 43 respondents identified these fees as "most effective," another 29 identified them as "least effective." Representative comments:
  - o "Inmates sign an agreement to pay for medical services out of the inmate trust fund."
  - o "Fees have dramatically reduced frivolous medical visits." (A number of respondents noted this.)
  - o "Medical treatment is not denied if the inmate does not have money, although a 'debt' is created."
- **Per Diem Fees** Opinions were also split on the effectiveness of per diem charges, with 21 respondents identifying these fees as "most effective" and 18 calling them "least effective." Representative comments:
  - o "Unpaid per diem accounts are turned over to a collection agency."
  - o "The daily subsistence fee is successful because it is taken from the inmate's account on a daily basis. Even though approximately three-quarters of our inmates are indigent, this fee raises significant funds."

#### LEAST EFFECTIVE FEES

Survey participants were asked to identify the fees that their agency is LEAST able to successfully collect or that jail administrators do not consider effective or worthwhile. The following fees were most frequently cited as ineffective:

- Medical Fees As noted previously, these fees were among those identified as both most effective and least effective, depending on the experience of the agency and the perspective of the respondent. Representative comments about medical fees by those who consider it the least effective:
  - o "Medical fees are collected only if inmates have money in their commissary account and the amount is only 25%."
  - o "It is difficult to collect a medical co-pay, as many inmates are indigent."

- o "Because medical fees are charged manually, it takes more man-hours to process these transactions. The collection of past due accounts is an automatic process."
- **Per Diem Fees** As with medical fees, per diem fees were among those identified as <u>both</u> the most effective and least effective, depending on the experience of the agency and the perspective of the respondent. Representative comments about per diem fees by those who consider it the *least effective fee:* 
  - o "It is very difficult to collect the per diem fees because many inmates are indigent."
  - o "Per diems are collected because of political pressure."
- **Pharmacy Fees** Six (6) respondents considered pharmacy fees the "least effective" fees.

#### AGENCY EVALUATIONS OF COSTS/BENEFITS

Of the 226 agencies that participated in the survey, 17 (7.5%) have conducted a formal evaluation of the costs/benefits and net outcome of assessing inmate fees.

- Five of these agencies identified no financial benefit of collecting fees.
- The other 12 found either a net financial benefit from inmate fees or a benefit in other terms, such as a reduction in inmate sick calls.

#### METHODS OF TRACKING FEE COLLECTIONS

Among responding agencies, the largest number (82) use a combination of automated and manual systems for tracking fee collections, although nearly as many (71) use only an automated system.

**Table 23. Methods of Tracking Fee Collections** 

TRACKING METHOD	NUMBER OF JAILS
Automated System	71
Manual System	26
Combination Manual/Auto	82

#### **CONCLUSION: MAKING INMATE FEES COUNT**

Based on their experience with inmate fees, agencies identified a number of factors as most important in making the assessment of inmate fees an effective strategy. They also made numerous comments about the positive and negative aspects of charging fees.

Following is a summary of the points made most frequently, along with a brief discussion of some comments made by survey respondents:

- Medical fees cut down on frivolous medical visits. A number of respondents made this comment. One noted that medical fees have reduced the number of doctor visits and prescriptions, as money is deducted from inmates' accounts at the rate of 20% for each visit, with any balance remaining available for commissary. A number of agencies commented, however, that it is difficult to collect medical fees because of the large number of indigent inmates and the fact that medical service is never denied for lack of payment. In several jurisdictions, any balance owed for medical services remains on the inmate's account to be collected if they return to the jail.
- It is important to do a cost/benefit analysis of the staff time expended on collection vs. the amount of money collected. Again, this was a very frequent comment, with a number of respondents noting the difficulty of having adequate staff to monitor and collect fees effectively. Others commented on the likelihood that fees, especially high ones, can negatively impact commissary spending, which, in turn, affects the inmate welfare fund. One agency handled this problem by taking no more than half the money in inmate funds for any fees, allowing the inmate to purchase from the commissary with the other half. A number of respondents pointed to the importance of having an automated system for tracking fees as a way of cutting down on staff time.
- **External pressures can affect agencies' policies on collecting fees.** Several respondents pointed to fees as a way of responding to pressures from the public both to decrease tax burdens and to require inmates to "pay their own way." One respondent noted that all fee collections were the result of political pressure from the public. On the other side of this argument, one jurisdiction pointed to its county council's opposition to the idea of "pay to stay," and another noted current challenges to the collection of booking fees without a hearing.
- Fees to inmates must be "reasonable." Fee collection must be pursued in a balanced system that provides adequate services but also covers some costs, according to one respondent. One commented that "we shouldn't nickel and dime inmates to death." Others noted that fee policies must take into account the fact that many inmates do not have the resources to pay fees and, in fact, are often

indigent. In this context, several respondents noted, "Some revenues from fees are better than none."

**Efforts to collect fees after inmates' release can be important in maximizing revenues.** There was disagreement on this point, with some respondents commenting on the importance of making substantial efforts to collect fees after an inmate's release, including the use of collections agencies, while others believe that such efforts are not worthwhile because they are not often successful.

# Appendix A

Survey Questionnaire

## NIC Survey: Fees Paid by Jail Inmates

U.S. Department of Justice, National Institute of Corrections
July 2005

\*\* Please return your agency's response by Friday, August 19, 2005 \*\*
Send to: Connie Clem, Senior Communications Specialist, NIC Information Center Fax: (303) 682-0558 — 1860 Industrial Circle, Longmont, Colorado 80501
Telephone (800) 995-6429, ext. 712, or (303) 682-0213; E-mail cclem@nicic.org

#### AGENCY RESPONDENT INFORMATION

Respor	ndent name & title _				
Teleph	one	Fax		E-mail	
Agency	/				
Mailing	address				
City/sta	ate/ZIP				
Would	you like to be notified	d by e-mail when the	survey report is co	ompleted? YES	NO
ABOU <sup>-</sup>	T THIS RESEARCH				
manag	e and administer fee	collection efforts. The	ere is relatively little	organized information a	by jail inmates and how to available about jail inmate nicic.org/Library/013599.)
		ey, you will help crea nk you for participatir		ource for jail administra	ators and others who are
PART	1. FEES ASSESSEI	BY YOUR AGENC	Y		
1.	Does your agency	collect any type of fee	e from jail detainee	es/inmates?	
	Yes		No */**	_ We are consider	ring
		'no" and your agenc se return only this pa		ssed any inmate fees,	your survey is complete.
	** If you answered " skip to Question 5,		~ has assessed inma	ate fees in the past, but r	no longer does so, please

NIC Survey: Fees Paid by Jail Inmates page 2

2. **Fees paid by program participants.** Please indicate whether your agency collects, or is considering implementing, fees from inmates who participate in the following types of <u>programs</u>. Write in any other program fees collected.

For each type of fee, indicate the amount of the fee charged (e.g, \$25 per week, \$500 one-time fee to enroll) and the total revenues collected for this item in calendar or fiscal year 2004. If the fee was collected for less than 1 year, pro-rate to an approximate total for the year.

** Place check in box if agency does not assess any fees for program participation:	
---	--

	Yes	No	We are considering	Amount of fee charged to inmate	Total 1-year revenues, 2004
Work release					
"Weekender" program					
Community service					
Electronic monitoring					
Jail industries/jobs program					
Substance abuse testing					
Substance abuse treatment					
Vocational aptitude testing, certifications, etc.					
GED testing					
Other program fees assessed (identify)					
		I		Total, program fees:	

NIC Survey: Fees Paid by Jail Inmates page 3

3. **Non-program fees paid by inmates.** Please indicate whether your agency collects, or is considering implementing, inmate fees in the following <u>non-program areas</u>. Write in any other inmate fees collected.

Indicate the amount of the fee charged (e.g, \$10 per office visit, \$50 one-time fee) and the total revenues collected for this item in calendar or fiscal year 2004. If a fee was collected for less than 1 year, pro-rate to an approximate total for the year.

This does not include fees paid by inmates' medical insurance.	
** Place check in box if agency does not assess any fees for non-program services:	

Yes	No	We are considering	Amount of fee charged to inmate	Total 1-year revenues, 2004
	Yes	Yes No		

NIC Survey: Fees Paid by Jail Inmate:	s
page 4	

3. (Non-program fees, continued)

	Yes	No	We are considering	Amount of fee charged to inmate	Total 1-year revenues, 2004
Release escort (e.g., for funerals, job interviews)					
Other non-program fees assessed (identify)					
				Total, non-program fees:	

#### PART 2. ADMINISTRATIVE & MANAGEMENT ISSUES

4.	What accounting method(s) are used in your agency to track the collection, accounting, and/or disbursement of inmate fees?
	Automated system (computer based)
	Manual system
	Combination
5.	Has your agency conducted a formal evaluation of the costs/benefits and net outcome of assessing inmate fees?  Yes  No
	If yes, did the findings show a net monetary benefit to the agency or government unit?
	Yes No
	Comments (optional):

NIC Su page 5	rvey: Fees Paid by Jail Inmates
6.	Based on your agency's experience with inmate fees, please identify the fees that your agency is BEST able to successfully collect or that are otherwise considered to be effective and worthwhile by the jail administration. (List up to 5 types of fees and briefly explain.)
7.	Based on your agency's experience with inmate fees, please identify the fees that your agency is LEAST able to successfully collect or that are not considered effective and worthwhile by the jail administration. Specifically identify any fees that your agency has ceased assessing against inmates. (List up to 5 types of fees and briefly explain.)
8.	Based on your agency's experience, what factors have been most important in making the assessment of inmate fees an effective strategy?

## **Appendix B**

#### Raw Data about Jail Fees

## Legend

Sizes of responding jails are indicated as follows:

Small (S) Medium (M) Large (L) Mega (MEGA)

Source of data: American Correctional Association. See p. 2 of main report.

Work Release			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cullman Co., AL (S)	Considering		
Dallas Co., AL (S)	25% of check	\$45,000.00	
Elmore Co., AL (M)	25% gross		
Fayette Co., AL (S)	25% week	\$33,540.27	
Lawrence Co., AL (S)	25.00%		
Lowndes Co., AL (S)	25.00%	\$22.895.65	
San Mateo Co., CA (MEGA)	60/admin 20/day	\$744,719.00	
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	52 application 6.25/day + 4 worker's comp (up to 667) out of county work release	\$179,021.00	Administered by non-profit
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	12-40/night based on income	\$351,000.00	
Arapanoe Co., CO (L)		\$331,000.00	
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	70/wk or 20% gross, not to exceed 140/wk 50 hookur	\$74,113.71	
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)		\$147,414.95	
Christian Co., IL (M)	Sliding scale	•	
Clark Co., IL (S)	25/day 12/day	\$8,205.00 \$1,500.00	
Clark Co., IL (S)	12/day	\$1,300.00	
DuPage Co., IL (M)	X	\$171,255.00	Includes weekender progran
Hancock Co., IL (S)	20/day		1 5
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	15/day	\$3,500.00	
Henry Co., IL (M)	25/day	\$3,300.00	
Livingston Co., IL (M)	X	\$30,926.25	
Mason Co., IL (S)	20/day	\$3,920.00	
Menard Co., IL (S)	18/day		
Mercer Co., IL (S)	25/day		
Peoria Co., IL (L)	22/day	\$15,106.00	
Platt Co., IL (S)	12/day		
Saline Co., IL (M)	Up to 35	\$1,511.00	
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	18/day	\$8,541.00	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	Varies		
Williamson Co., IL (M)	5/day	\$1,210.30	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	49-126 wk depending on incom		
Fulton Co., IN (S)	15/day		
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	X		
. ,	25% gross w/pay; 30 drug test; 50		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	acceptance fee	\$120,000.00	

#### Work Release

Noble Co., IN (M)	25% gross weekly pay	\$71,275.00	
		·	Collected by community
Owen Co., IN (M)	X		corrections
Parke Co., IN (M)	X	\$6,574.52	
Shelby Co., IN (M)	12/day	\$20,368.00	
Spencer Co., IN (M)	25% net income min \$50 max 90		
	20% weekly income or 125/wk		Community corrections now
Wabash Co., IN (M)	whichever is greater	\$19,486.87	receives
Wayne Co., IN (M)	25%/gross	0	
Wells Co., IN (M)	125/wk	\$9,820.00	
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	30/day		
Butler Co., KS (M)	10/day	\$2,730.00	
Allegany Co., MD	25% gross	\$41,771.34	
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X	\$61,798.00	
Cheboygan Co., Ml	105/week	\$32,262.00	
Emmet Co., MI (M)	20/day	\$137,166.21	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	Based on hourly wagε	\$102,980.00	
Iosco Co., MI (M)	15/day		
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	15/day	\$1,400.00	
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$12,280.00	
Mason Co., MI (M)	30/day		
			Includes weekender and per
Menominee Co., MI (S)	20/day	\$3,1254	diem
DOC, RI (State system)	16/day	\$12,631.00	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	25/day	\$100,000.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	15/day work; 30/other	\$37,684.00	
Cass Co., MN (M)	15/day	\$17,680.00	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	20/day		
Douglas Co., MN (M)	15/day	\$39,124.25	
Faribault Co., MN (S)	25/day		
Freeborn Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$48,440.00	
Isanti Co., MN (S)	15/day	\$10,436.00	
Itasca Co., MN (M)	20/day	\$60,293.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$30,000.00	
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	40	\$31,400.00	
Lyon Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$58,500.00	
Nobles Co., MN (S)	126/week		
	22.50/day out of county; 12.50/day		
Pennington Co., MN (M)	county & meals		
Todd Co., MN (S)	15/day	\$10,000.00	

#### Work Release

Wabasha Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$21,740.00	
Wright Co., MN (M)	15/day	15/day \$47,655.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$3,400.00	
St Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	Ended; was 25% gross to 250/week	\$314,389.00	Ended
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	X		
Hunterdon Co., NJ (M)	20% of check		
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5/day	\$3,315.00	
Somerset Co., NJ (L)	5/day	\$365.00	
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	20/day	\$20,000.00	
Ashland Co., OH (M)	12/day	\$13,100.00	
Auglaize Co., OH (M)	25% gross	\$50,421.35	
Clinton Co., OH (S)	20% net pay		
Delaware Co., OH (M)	10/day		
Washington Co., OH (M)	75/wk	\$19,707.00	Includes weekender
Custer Co., OK (S)	15/day		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	15/day		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Texas Co., OK (M)	35/day		
Woodward Co., OK (S)	21.06/day		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	20% gross	\$13,000.00	
Lane Co., OR (L)	12.50-39.50/day	\$354,534.16	
Union Co., OR (M)	., OR (M) Considering		
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)			
Franklin Co., PA (L)	23% gross	\$396,049.23	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	10/day	\$234,410.00	
McKean Co., PA (M)	20% net pay	\$55,995.21	
Northampton Co., PA (L)	10/day	\$206,496.00	
Tioga Co., PA (M)	10/day		
Washington Co., PA (M)	% of gross	\$200,000.00	
DOC, RI (State system)	30% gross	\$102,753.00	Includes laundry
	25/administrative fee; 8/id card 5/tb	·	•
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	test 10/day	\$587,503 (1/04-12/04)	
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	. , ,	
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	10/day	\$118,676.00	
	10/day if hourly <10 hour; 42/day if		
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	hourly >9.99/hou	\$231,207.13	
Northwestern Regional ADC, VA	15/day \$434,041.00		
Buckley Police Dept., WA (S) 55/day \$36,135.00			
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA (M)	22-30/day	\$9,904.00	_

#### Work Release

	25/processing daily fee based on	\$14,373.61 processing fees	
King Co., WA (MEGA)	hourly wage	\$414,943.52 other fees	
			Program suspended much of the year for building
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	Sliding fee & 35/screening fee	\$24,306.00	renovation
Whates Co. WA (M)	St. I'm1- 10/	¢125.740.00	
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	Sliding scale 1% gross	\$125,749.00	
Burnett Co., WI (S)	15/day	\$48,457.00	
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	13/day	\$128,088.00	
Douglas Co., WI (M)	15/day	\$71,974.00	
	16/day court orders; 21/day other		
Dunn Co., WI (M)	counties	\$154,480.00	
Eau Claire Co., WI (L)	15/day	\$360,000.00	
			Includes electronic
Green Lake Co., WI (S)	97.85/week	\$98,407.99	monitoring
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	16/day	\$237,371.95	
Kenosha Co., WI (M)	16/day plus meals	\$270,724.55	
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	15/day if working	\$179.995.26	
Menominee Tribal Detention, WI (S)	15/day	\$17,000.00	
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	140/week		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	19/day	\$673,787.00	
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	15/day	\$31,000.00	
Shawano Co., WI (L)	15/day	\$344,288.21	
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	19/day	\$208,201.00	
Walworth Co., WI (L)	16/day 112/week	\$652,093.00	
Washington Co., WI (L)	16/day	\$422,490.00	

Substance abuse testing			
County	<b>Substance Abuse Testing</b>	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	\$9.00	0	
Henry Co., IL (M)	15/test	\$109.00	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	15 each		
Grant Co., IN (L)	10	\$940.00	
Noble Co., IN (M)	30/month	\$8.15	
Owen Co., IN (M)	X	Community corrections	
Parke Co., IN (M)	X	\$170.00	
Kalkaska Co., MI (M)	X		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	0	
Menominee Co., MI (S)	15/test	0	
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	5/test	\$4,630.00	
Cass Co., MN (M)	10 test	\$70.00	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	See note		Paid by social services; may be copay
Doulas Co., MN (M)	UA testing for work release only	\$8,240.00	
Faribault Co., MN (S)	5/test		
Freeborn Co., MN (S)	10	\$400.00	
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	60/test	\$4,686.25	
Isanti Co., MN (S)	15 for 5 screens; 35 full screen	\$1,697.50	
Itasca Co., MN (M)	10	\$3,629.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	50/test		
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	20	\$500.00	
Lyon Co., MN (S)	15/UA; 10/PBT	\$6,500.00	
Nobles Co., MN (S)	10		
Todd Co., MN (S)	20/test	\$1,000.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	30/15/test	\$1,000.00	
Custer Co., OK (S)	25/test	-	
Marshall Co., OK (M)	25/test		
Osage Co., OK (M)	8/test		
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	2.50/week (work release only)	\$2,385.00	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	X ordered by court	-	
McKean Co., PA (M)	5/test	-	
Northampton Co., PA (L)	3/week	\$26,268.00	
Tioga Co., PA (M)	5.25/test		

## Substance Abuse Testing

Washington Co., PA (M)	Actual cost		
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	4/test	\$15,327.00	
			Includes substance abuse testing,
	No charge for pre-trial; subequent		nurse/LPN, physician, pharmacy,
Northwestern Regional ADC, VA	tests for work release applicants 5	\$24,782.00	dental care, eye prescriptions
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	15/test		
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	12	\$1,829.82	
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	15/week	\$24,975.00	
Burnett Co., WI (S)	10	\$100.00	
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	2/PBT 10/UA		
Dunn Co., WI (M)	200 per assessment		Goes directly to provide:
Eau Claire Co., WI (L)	20 upon arrival to Huber \$		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	5/test	\$2,075.00	
	16 if positive and requires		
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	confirmation		
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	15/test		
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	25/test	\$1,280.00	
			Provided at intake at Work Release
Shawano Co., WI (L)	0	0	Center
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	5/test	\$2,325.00	
Menominee Tribal DF, WI (S)	5 for positive test		Just started in 2005

Weekender Program			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004 Notes	
•			
	\$10/day (collected by		
Fresno Co., CA	prob.	Collected by Probation Departmen	
Santa Clara Co., CA (MEGA)	40 admin 15/day	\$84,000.00	
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	40/weekend	\$351,000.00 Includes work release	
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	100 one time	\$3,305.00	
	15 processing fee;		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	2/day	(Started 2/05)	
DuPage Co., IL (M)	X	\$171,255.00 Includes work release	
Hancock Co., IL (S)	20/day		
Henderson Co., IL	15/day	\$1,300.00	
Henry Co., IL (M)	25/day	\$20,300.00	
Mason Co., IL (S)	20/day	\$1,460.00	
McHenry Co., IL (L)	16/day	\$4,992.00	
Menard Co., IL (S)	18/day		
Peoria Co., IL (L)	22/day	\$16,271.00	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	Varies		
Williamson Co., IL (M)	5/day	\$1,224.93	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	30		
Fulton Co., IN (S)	Considering		
Parke Co., IN (M)	Considering		
Perry Co., IN (M)	30/day	\$2,170.00	
Spencer Co., IN (M)	15/day		
Allegany Co., MD (M)	15/day	\$20,063.00	
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X	\$8,581.00	
Cheboygan Co., Ml	105/weekend	\$5,000.00	
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	30/day	\$690.20	
Menominee Co., MI (S)	20/day	\$31,254.00 Includes work release and per dien	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	30/day	\$37,025.44 Includes per dien	
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	10/day	\$26,377.00 Includes daily rate	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	20/day		
Faribault Co., MN (S)	25/day		
Freeborn Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$1,200.00	
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	25	\$50.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	20/day + 65 fee	5 fee \$1,000.00	
St Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	30/day	Started 2005	
Humboldt Co., NV (M)	Considering		

## Weekender Program

Washington Co., OH (M)	75/weekend	\$19,707.00	
Custer Co., OK (S)	15/day		
Major Co., OK (S)	24/day		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	15/day		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Woodward Co., OK (S)	21.06/day		
Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering		
Washington Co., OR (L)	25/day	\$43,898.00	
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	80/weekend	\$2,625.00	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	10/day	\$3,000.00	
Washington Co., PA (M)	40	\$35,000.00	
DOC, RI (State system)	2 app fee	0	
	10 admin 10/day 2		
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	rebooking		
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority,			
VA	8/day	\$5,191.00	
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	8/day (court collected)		Court collected

Electronic monitoring			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
	\$120 start up 5-15/day		
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA)	based on incomε		Collected by private agency
San Mateo Co., CA (MEGA)	Sliding fee	\$47,188.00	2004-2005
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Considering		
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	2.9		Non-revenue; inmate pays cos
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	70-140 plus 50 hookup	\$398,738.67	
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	Sliding scale	\$271,559.44	
Pasco Co., FL (M)	Considering		
McHenry Co., IL (L)	X		
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	Considering		
Owen Co., IN (M)	X		Community corrections
, , ,	50 hookup; 10/day see		,
Wabash Co., IN (M)	note in C		Community corrections receive
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	10/day		,
Allegany Co., MD	20% gross		
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Cass Co., MN (M)	15/day		Handled by probation
Dakota Co., MN (M)	X		Handled by comunity correction
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	100/booking	\$190,098.50	, ,
Le Seur Co., MN	X		Private company
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	X		Handled by probation/parole
, , ,	22.5/day out of co		, 1 1
Pennington Co., MN (M)	17.5/day co		
Γodd Co., MN (S)	15/day		Probation manages
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$0.00	
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	25% gross to 134/wk		Began 2/05
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	X		Began 2/05
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	Considering		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	10/day	\$1,500.00	
	Conducted by		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	Community Justice		Conducted by Community Justic
Lane Co., OR (L)	11-38/day	\$20,980.76	

## Electronic Monitoring

Union Co., OR (M)	15/day	\$27,260.00
Washington Co., OR (L)	35 and sliding	0 Just started
	4.50/day; 9/day	
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	w/breathalizer	\$90,000.00
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	Parole dept	Conducted by Parole Departmen
Northampton Co., PA (L)	7/day	\$73,671.00
DOC, RI (State system)	4/day	\$326,194.00
	270/month collected	
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	by pre trial serivces	Collected by pre-trial serivces
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	15/day	\$216,423.88
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	15/day	\$117,491.00
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	17-30/day	\$26,872.89
	25 processing and	
King Co., WA (MEGA)	daily based on hourly	\$199,901.28
	Sliding fee and	
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	35/screening	\$78,620.24 Program implemented mid-June 2004
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	22/day	\$185,040.00
Burnett Co., WI (S)	20/day	\$12,483.00
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	13 or 16/day	\$31,235.00
Douglas Co., WI (M)	20/day	\$81,056.00
Dunn Co., WI (M)	22/day	\$24,313.00
Green Lake Co., WI (S)	97.85/week	\$98,407.99 Includes work release
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	16/day	\$2,336.00
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	15/day	\$41,409.07
Menominee Tribal DF, W (S)	Considering	
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	140/week	
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	20/day	\$160,757.00
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	20/day	\$4,000.00
Shawano Co., WI (L)	20/day	\$1,706.15
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	19/day	\$25,023.00
Washington Co., WI (L)	16/day	\$96,094.00

Community Service			
County	Fee Information	Annual Revenues, 2004	Notes
Elmore Co., AL (M)	Xnone		
Santa Clara Co., CA (MEGA)	7/day	\$255,000.00	
	Overseen by non-profit agency: Out of county work release 20/day; community service 25-100		
	depending on # of hours	0 to county sheriff's office	
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	worked	\$76,00 to non-profit agency	
Owen Co., IN (M)	X		Community correction
Allegany Co., MD	X		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X 100%	\$39,667.00	
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	15/day	\$17,889.00	
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	Considering		
Lincoln Co., MN (S) St Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	X handled by probation and parole 60	 \$154,670.00	
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	8/day	Ψ13 1,070.00	
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	X	\$3,894.00	
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering	\$2,00 1.00	
Major Co., OK (S)	X		
Osage Co., OK (M)	20/day		
Pottawatomie Co., OK	Considering		
2 3 3 3 4 3 1	Complacing		Includes work release and
Lane Co., OR (L)	15-40/case	\$24.306.00	electronic monitoring
Washington Co., OR (L)	8-34 sliding	# <b>-</b> .,= 00.00	
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	35 screening fee		
	15 for 8 hours court orders		
Dunn Co., WI (M)	18 for 8 hrs other counties		

Medical office visit co-pay			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cherokee Co., AL (M)	\$10.00	\$160.91	
Cullman Co., AL (S)	13	\$6,718.00	
Dallas Co., AL (S)	10	\$2,000.00	
Lowndes Co., AL (S)	12	\$204.00	
Walker Co., AL (M)	10	\$!6,180	
Fresno Co., CA	3	\$5,000,00	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, pharmacy, dental care
Tesho Co., CA	3	\$3,000.00	3/04-12/04 pilot program; includes
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA)	3	\$7,182.51	nurse/LPN
San Diago Co. CA (MECA)	2	¢c0 574 10	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	3 3		pharmacy, dental care, dental exan
San Mateo Co., CA (MEGA)	Considered (see	\$11,733.00	
	`		
Santa Clara Co., CA (MEGA)	notes)		Considered not cost effective
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	3 (max per law)	<del></del>	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental care and exam, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	5	\$21,650.00	exam and prescription
Broomfield Police Dept. DC, CO (M)	5		1
	In-house 10.00; off-		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	site 100	\$1,901.39	
	Other: Xray 10		
	ultrasound 25 lab		
	work 4 specialists 75		
	er visit 125 outpt		
	care/surg 175 hosp		Includes nurse/LPN, physician, dental
Pasco Co., FL (M)	250	\$117,978.17	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		, .,.	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, dental
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	8	\$35,044.83	exam and care
Christian Co., IL (M)	X	\$868.67	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	Considering		
Henry Co., IL (M)	X	\$1,280.00	

	50% of incoming		
	money from inmate		
	w/open medical		
Mason Co., IL (S)	expense acct	\$3,186.70	
McHenry Co., IL (L)	10		Includes nurse/LPN and physiciai
Mericing Co., IE (E)	10	ψ170.00	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental care and exam, eye
Peoria Co., IL (L)	10	\$10,000,00	exam and prescription
Platt Co., IL (S)	15	Ψ10,000.00	exam and prescription
Tiut Co., IE (b)	13		
			Includes pharmacy, dental care and
Saline Co., IL (M)	10	\$3,591,53	exam, eye exam and prescription
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering	40,071.00	onum, eye emum una presempusi
Semayier con, 12 (e)	- Completing		
Shelby Co., IL (S)	10 .40/oral 1/topical		
Williamson Co., IL (M)	10	\$348.48	
, , ,	X processing fee non	·	
Bartholemew Co., IN (M)	DOC only		
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10		
Fayette Co., IN (M)	15		
Fulton Co., IN (S)	10		
Grant Co., IN (L)	X		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15		
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
			exam and care, eye exam and
DOC, RI (State system)	15	\$681.70	prescription
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
			exam and care, eye exam and
Owen Co., IN (M)	15	\$3,033.61	prescription
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Parke Co., IN (M)	10 non-emergency	\$1,019.41	pharmacy
			Includes physician, dental exam and
Perry Co., IN (M)	Combined with kmi	\$405.00	care
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
			exam and care, eye exam and
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00	prescription
Spencer Co., IN (M)	X		
Vigo Co., IN (M)	15	\$4,580.00	

	5/1/04-12/31/04; includes physician,
	pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
15	\$850.15 exam and prescription
	,
Ţ.	
	\$355.00
	\$2,294.96
	\$2,500.00
	\$6,000.00 Includes nurse/LPN
	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
18	\$13,684.06 exam
X	
X	\$5,000.00
25	
10	\$3,864.77 Includes nurse/LPN
30	\$5,000.00
	\$5,042.17
	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
3	\$2,132.29 care, eye prescription
3	\$4,114.23
Actual cost	
	\$810.00
10	
5	\$1,500.00
10	
5	
10	\$207.52
5	
5; other: lab fee 4;	
	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
_	\$2,788.00 pharmacy, dental exam and care
5	1
	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Xray 5	\$19,537.41 pharmacy, dental exam and care
	X X X 25 10 30 X 10 30 X 10 3 Actual cost 10 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 5; other: lab fee 4; xray/utrasound 3; intake prenatal 5

	all medical fees paid	Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy, den
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	one time only	\$17, 116 care and exam, eye exam and care
Hunterdon Co., NJ (M)	5	
Monmouth Co., NJ (MEGA)	5	\$28,055.98 Includes pharmacy, dental care
From our co., 1 to (Fizer 1)		Includes physician, nurse/LPN,
		pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76 exam and prescriptions
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	10	\$4,000.00
Buncomee co., 110 (E)	10	Includes physician, nurse/LPN,
		pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Ashland Co., OH (M)	5	\$5,280.00 exam and care, barber
Auglaize Co., OH (M)	X	\$1,105.00
Delaware Co., OH (M)	Actual cost	
Highland Co., OH (S)	10	\$1,245.64
Licking Co., OH (L)	10	
Summit Co. Corr, OH (M)	X	
Tuscarawas Co., OH (M)	All medical combined	
100001011000000000000000000000000000000	The model with the content of the co	Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Canadian Co., OK (M)	10	\$3,456.85 pharmacy
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	Considering	, constant
Comanche Co., OK (M)	8	
Custer Co., OK (S)	7	
Garvin Co., OK (M)	Actual cost	0
Grady Co., OK (M)	8	\$3,456.00
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Leflore Co., OK (M)	8	
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering	
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Oklahoma Co., OK	8	\$65,836.46 5/04-5/05
Osage Co., OK (M)	8	
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering	
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	8	
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10	
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost	
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	8	
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	8	\$730.38 Includes nurse/LPN
		Controlled by DA; included in court
Woods Co., OK (S)	X	costs

	Actual cost if pre-	Includes pharmacy, dental exam and
Woodward Co., OK (S)	existing conditior	\$1,084.91 care
Crook Co., OR (S)	5	
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	10	
Josephine Co., OR (M)	10	Collected by Health Departmen
Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering	
Union Co., OR (M)	5	
	31; other: medical	
	screening 7 per	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, den
Washington Co., OR (L)	booking	\$11,594.97; \$32,037 exam, eye exam
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	3	\$5,738.00 Includes physician, dental exan
Franklin Co., PA (L)	5	\$1,716.26
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	X	
Northampton Co., PA (L)	\$5.00	\$4,611.00 Includes dental exam
Tioga Co., PA (M)	5	
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering	
		Includes medical, physician,
DOC, RI (State system)	3	\$36,284.00 pharmacy, dental care, eye care exa
Weber Co., UT (L)	10	
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	5	\$8,160.00
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
		physician, pharmacy, dental exam a
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	10	\$15,591.90 care, eye exam and prescriptions
Hampton Roads Reg Jail, VA (L)	10	\$6,672.00 Includes pharmacy, dental care
	15 copay after	
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	physical	Started 2005
King Co., WA (MEGA)	5	\$15,637.52 Includes nurse/LPN, physiciar
	If outside facility	
	100% of what	
	insurance doesn't	
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	cover	Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	5	\$2,919.00 Total medical billing recovered
Spokane Co., WA (L)	12	\$24,677.00 Includes pharmacy, denta
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	5	\$500.00
		Collect for outside
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	X	medical/dental/mental health care
Dunn Co., WI (M)	5	\$410.00
Kenosha Co., WI (M)	5 on site 10 off site	\$14,032.74 Includes pharmacy

#### Medical

	Actual charge at MA		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	rates	\$19,936.00	
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	MA cost of service	\$13,550.38	exam and prescription
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	X	\$29,623.00	pharmacy, dental exam

Physician visit co-pay			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cherokee Co., AL (M)	\$5.00	\$580.08	
Cullman Co., AL (S)	13	\$910.00	
Dallas Co., AL (S)	10	\$2,000.00	
			Includes pharmacy, dental exan
Elmore Co., AL (M)	10	\$3,600.00	and care, eye exam and care
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5.1		
Hale Co., AL (S)	10	\$95.44	
Lowndes Co., AL (S)	12	\$204.00	
Shelby Co., AL (M)	10	\$11,000.00	Includes pharmacy, dental exan
Walker Co., AL (M)	10		
Fresno Co., CA	3	\$5,000,00	Includes medical, nurse/LPN, pharmacy, dental care
1105110 CO., C/1	3	ψ5,000.00	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			pharmacy, dental exam and
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	3	\$69,574.10	care
	Paid by Medicruz,		
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	billed to inmate		
			Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye exam
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	10	\$21,650.00	
Broomfield Police Dept., CO (M)	5	Ψ21,020.00 	una care
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	5		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	10	\$3,600.00	
D. C. FLAN		Ф117 070 17	Includes nurse/LPN, physican,
Pasco Co., FL (M)	7	\$117,978.17	pharmacy, dental exam
			Includes nurse/LPN, medical,
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	8	\$35,044.83	dental exam and care
Christian Co., IL (M)	X		
			Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy,
DuPage Co., IL (M)	10	\$10, 048.24	dental care
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		

Henry Co., IL (M)	20	\$480.00	
Livingston Co., IL (M)	5	\$338.93	Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy
Madison Co., IL (L)	15		
McHenry Co., IL (L)	10	\$490.00	Includes nurse/LPN, physiciar
Morgan Co., IL (S)	10 first visit		
			Medical, nurse/LPN, pharmacy,
Peoria Co., IL (L)	10	\$10,000.00	dental exam and care
Platt Co., IL (S)	15		
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Shelby Co., IL (S)	20		
Bartholomew Co., IN (M)	15	\$6,507.95	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10		
Fayette Co., IN (M)	15		
Grant Co., IN (L)	15	\$3,788.68	Includes dental exam and care
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	15		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15		
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
			Includes medical, pharmacy,
		•	dental exam and care, eye exam
Miami Co., IN (M)	15	\$681.70	and prescriptions
			Includes pharmacy, dental exan
			and care, eye exam and
Noble Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,147.58	prescriptions
			Includes medical, pharmacy,
Owen Co., IN (M)	15	\$3,033.61	dental exam and care
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Parke Co., IN (M)	X	\$1,019.41	pharmacy, all sick calls
			Includes medical, pharmacy,
Perry Co., IN (M)	15	\$270.00	dental exam and care
			Includes medical, pharmacy,
			dental exam and care, eye exam
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00	and prescriptions
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10		<del>_</del>
Vigo Co., IN (M)	15	\$540.00	

		(5/1/04-12/3	1/04) Includes
		*	se/LPN, pharmacy,
			and care, eye exam
Wabash Co., IN (M)	15	\$850.15 and prescript	•
Wayne Co., IN (M)	Considering	\$650.15 and presempt	tione
viagne co., nv (ivi)	Considering	Includes nur	se/LPN, pharmacy,
Wells Co., IN (M)	15	\$2,802.00 dental exam	se, Er i i, pharmae y,
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	φ2,002.00 dental exam	
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost		
Caddo Parish Co., LA (MEGA)	5		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	12	\$1,263.00	
rinegan co., wii (wi)	12	ψ1,203.00	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	25 after intake physical	\$2,473.00	
, , ,	1 3	. ,	
		Includes med	dical, nurse/LPN,
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	X	\$13,684.06 dental exam	and care
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	8		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$3,000.00	
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	30	\$780.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	25		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	10	New fee; no	data available
	5, pretrial; actual cost,		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	sentenced		
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN	3	\$1,593.05	
		Includes med	dical, nurse/LPN,
Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	Included in office visi	\$2,132.29 dental care, 6	eye prescriptions
Itasca Co., MN (M)	Actual cost	\$451.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$3,000.00	
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	\$1,500.00	
Todd Co., MN (S)	5		
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	10		
Wright Co., MN (M)	5		
		Includes pha	rmacy, dental exan
		and care, eye	e exam and
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$490.00 prescriptions	
		Includes med	dical, nurse/LPN,
		pharmacy, de	ental exam and
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	\$5.00	\$2,788.00 care	

Humboldt Co., NV (M)	\$5.00		
Tumbolat Co., IVV (W)	ψ3.00		
		Includes nurse/LPN, phari	macv
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$19,537.41 dental exam and care	macj,
rtianic co., 145 (MEG/1)	10	Includes medical, nurse/L.	PN.
		pharmacy, dental exam an	
		care, eye exam and	_
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00 prescriptions	
Hunterdon Co., NJ (M)	5		
Franceidon Coi, 1 to (112)		Includes medical, nurse/L	PN,
		pharmacy, dental exam an	
		care, eye exam and	
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76 prescriptions	
		72,223.7 F	
		Includes medical, pharmac	cv.
		dental exam and care, eye	•
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5,280.00 and prescriptions, barber	
Delaware Co., OH (M)	20		
Erie Co., OH (M)	5	\$1,000.00	
Highland Co., OH (S)	15	0	
Licking Co., OH (L)	10		
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	10		
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	10		
. ,		Includes medical, nurse/Li	PN,
Tuscarawas Co., OH (M)	5	\$3,456.85 pharmacy	
Washington Co., OH (M)	7	Began 7/05	
Canadian Co., OK (M)	10		
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Comanche Co., OK (M)	8		
Custer Co., OK (S)	7		
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Leflore Co., OK (M)	8		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Osage Co., OK (M)	8		
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	8		
Rogers Co., OK (M)	8	\$768.00	· <u> </u>
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10		

Seguoyah Co., OK (S)	8	\$432.00	
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost	ψ4 <i>32</i> .00	
Crook Co., OR (S)	Determined by billing		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	5		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	3	<del></del>	Collected by Health
Josephine Co., OR (M)	10		_
Josephine Co., OR (M) Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering	<del></del>	Department
Union Co., OR (M)	10		
Union Co., OR (M)	10	<del></del>	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Washington Ca. OR (I)	21	¢1 150 407 00	
Washington Co., OR (L)	31	\$1,159,497.00	dental exam, eye exam
D 1 C DA (MECA)	_	Φ <b>5.72</b> 9.00	T 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	5 unless referred by	\$5,/38.00	Includes medical, dental exan
T C DA (I)		ф2 000 00	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	nurse	\$3,000.00	
McKean Co., PA (M)	5		
Tioga Co., PA (M)	5	<u></u>	
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		
	6 to podiatrist, oral		
	surgeon, ENT, etc. Not		Includes medical, pharmacy,
DOC, RI (State system)	to exceed 125/yr	\$1,159,497.00	dental exam, eye exam
			Includes physician, pharmacy,
			dental care, eye exam and
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	10	\$114,237.70 (10/03-9/04)	
Regional Jail Authority, VA	10	\$5,200.00	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			pharmacy, dental exam and
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	10	\$15,591.90	care
			Includes substance abuse
			testing, nurse/LPN, pharmacy,
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	10	\$24,782.00	dental care, eye prescriptions
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	15		Started 2005
King Co., WA (MEGA)	5	\$15,637.52	Includes nurse/LPN, physiciar
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	Considering		
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	Actual cost		To provider
Douglas Co., WI (M)	10		
	6 no charge for follow		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	up scheduled by docto	\$1,842.00	

	A 11 C 1 1		
	All fees based on		
	medical assistance rate		Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
	jail pays; inmates		pharmacy, dental exam and
	charged same rate for		care, eye exam and
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	services provided	\$4,633.26	prescriptions
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	5		
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	10	\$165.00	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			pharmacy, dental exam and
Shawano Co., WI (L)	7	\$13,550.38	care, eye exam and prescription
	,	ψ10,00 0.00	care, eye enam and presempusi
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			pharmacy, dental exam and
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	10	\$29,623.00	care, eye exam and prescription
			1 1
			Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy,
			dental exam and care, eye exam
Walworth Co., WI (L)	6	\$20,000.00	and prescription
			Includes nurse/LPN, pharmacy,
Washington Co., WI (L)	10	\$8,656.00	dental exam

Nurse/LPN visit co-pay			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cullman Co., AL (S)	\$13.00	\$5,808.00	
Shelby Co., AL (M)	5	\$11,000.00	
		7 7,0 0 0.00	Includes medical, physician,
Fresno Co., CA	3	\$5,000.00	pharmacy, dental care
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA)	3		3/04-12/04
		+	Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	3	\$69.574.10	exam and care
		<del>+ 02 <b>,2</b></del>	Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental care and exam, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	5	\$21,650.00	exam and prescription
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	3	<del></del>	1 1
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	5	\$27,714.91	
Pasco Co., FL (M)	5	\$117,978.17	
, , ,		. ,	Includes medical, physician, dental
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	8	\$35,044.85	exam and care
7			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
DuPage Co., IL (M)	10	\$10,048.24	care
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Henry Co., IL (M)	5	\$425.00	
Livingston Co., IL (M)	2	\$338.93	Includes physician, pharmacy
Madison Co., IL (L)	5		
McHenry Co., IL (L)	10	\$490.00	Inludes physiciar
			Includes medical, physician,
Peoria Co., IL (L)	10	\$10,000.00	pharmacy, dental exam and care
Platt Co., IL (S)	15		
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10		
Grant Co., IN (L)	10	\$104.85	
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
			Includes medical, physician,
Parke Co., IN (M)	X	\$1,019.41	pharmacy, dental exam
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10		
			5/1/04-12/31/04 includes physician,
Wabash Co., IN (M)	15	\$850.15	pharmacy, dental exam
Wayne Co., IN (M)	Considering		

			Includes medical, physician,
Wells Co., IN (M)	5	\$2,802.75	pharmacy, dental exan
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	·	
Allegan Co., MI (M)	3	\$97.00	
Cheboygan Co., MI	15	\$6,000.00	Includes medical
	15 after intake		
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	physical	\$2,473.00	w/physican?
			Includes medical, physician, dental
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	4	\$13,684.06	exam
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$1,500.00	
Menominee Co., MI (S)	35 per call-in	\$3,864.77	Includes medical
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	15	\$4,472.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	10		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	3		New fee; no data available
Cass Co., MN (M)	5	\$1,054.00	
	5, pretrial; actual		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	cost, sentenced		
	Included in office		Includes medical, physician, dental
Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	visit	\$2,132.29	care, eye prescription
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	3	\$2,263.13	
Isanti Co., MN (S)	5	\$75.00	
Itasca Co., MN (M)	5	\$75.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	5		
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	\$1,500.00	
Pennington Co., MN (M)	10		
Wright Co., MN (M)	5		
			Includes medical, physician,
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	2	\$2,788.00	pharmacy, dental exam and care
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	7	\$19,537.41	exam and care
			Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00	exam and prescriptior
			Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76	exam and prescription
Delaware Co., OH (M)	10		
Erie Co., OH (M)	4	\$500.00	
Licking Co., OH (L)	5		
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	5		

Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	5		
Tuscarawas Co., OH (M)	3	<b>\$2 156 85</b>	Includes medical, physician, pharmac
Washington Co., OH (M)	5		Began 7/05
Canadian Co., OK (M)	10		Began 7703
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Comanche Co., OK (M)	8		
Custer Co., OK (S)	7	<del></del>	
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost  Actual cost	<del></del>	
	Actual cost 8	<u></u>	
Leflore Co., OK (M)	-		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	<del></del>	
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost	ФПОО ОО	T 1 1 1 1
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	8	\$/30.38	Includes medical
	Determined by		
Crook Co., OR (S)	billing		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	5		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	5		Collected by Health Departmen
Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering		
			Includes medical, physician, dental
Washington Co., OR (L)	31		exam, eye exam
Franklin Co., PA (L)	3	\$1,462.44	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	3	\$5,000.00	
Northampton Co., PA (L)	3	\$181.00	
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	5	\$1,200.00	
			Includes medical, physician,
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	10	\$15,591.90	pharmacy, dental exam and care
			Includes substance abuse testing,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	10	\$24,782.00	prescriptions
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	15		Started 2005
King Co., WA (MEGA)	5	\$15,637.52	Includes nurse/LPN, physiciar
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	12		Total medical billing recovered
	5 scheduled appt.; 10		<u> </u>
Burnett Co., WI (S)	non-scheduled	\$224.00	
Douglas Co., WI (M)	5		
Eau Claire Co., WI (L)	5	\$13,000.00	
Green Lake Co., WI (S)	3		Just started collecting

### Nurse

	4, but no charge for		
	follow-up or		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	emergency	\$1,156.00	
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	7.5	\$4,633.26	
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	4		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	7.5	\$1,393.00	
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	3	\$147.00	
			Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	5	\$13,550.38	exam and prescription
			Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	5	\$29,623.00	exam and prescription
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Walworth Co., WI (L)	3	\$20,000.00	exam
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Washington Co., WI (L)	2	\$8,656.00	exam

Pharmacy co-pay			
County	Amount of Fee	Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cherokee Co., AL (M)	\$1.00	\$159,88	
Cullman Co., AL (S)	6.5	\$2,041.00	
Dallas Co., AL (S)	5	\$3,500.00	
			Includes physician, dental exam and
Elmore Co., AL (M)	3	\$3,600.00	care, eye exam and prescriptions
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5.1		
Hale Co., AL (S)	5	\$61.77	
Lowndes Co., AL (S)	12	\$192.00	
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Shelby Co., AL (M)	3	\$11,000.00	
Walker Co., AL (M)	6	\$14,296.00	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, dental exam and care, eye
Fresno Co., CA	3	\$5,000.00	exam and presciptions
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care,
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)		\$69,574.10	dental exam
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, dental exam and care, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	5	\$21,650.00	exam and presciptions
Broomfield Police Dept. DC, CO (M)	3		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	7	\$3,405.42	
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
Pasco Co., FL (M)	5	\$117,978.17	exam
Christian Co., IL (M)	X		
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
DuPage Co., IL (M)	3	\$10.048.24	care
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Henry Co., IL (M)	X		
Livingston Co., IL (M)	2	\$338.93	Includes nurse/LPN, physiciar
	5/prescription/month		
Morgan Co., IL (S)	emergency only		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, dental exam and care, eye
Peoria Co., IL (L)	5	\$10,000.00	exam and prescriptions

Platt Co., IL (S)	3	
		Includes medical, dental exam and
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$3,591.53 care, eye exam and prescriptions
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering	
	10; OTC meds: .40/oral	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	1/topical	
Williamson Co., IL (M)	3	\$21.07
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	3	
Fayette Co., IN (M)	15	
Fulton Co., IN (S)	5	
Grant Co., IN (L)	5	\$7,710.55
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	15	
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15	
Madison Co., IN (M)	15	
		Includes medical, physician, dental
		exam and care, eye exam and
Miami Co., IN (M)	Up to 15	\$681.70 prescriptions
		Includes physician, dental exam and
Noble Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,147.58 care, eye exam and prescriptions
		Includes medical, physician, dental
Owen Co., IN (M)	15	\$3,033.61 exam and care
		Includes medical, physician,
Parke Co., IN (M)	X	\$1,019.41 nurse/LPN
		Includes medical, physican, dental
Perry Co., IN (M)	5	\$270.00 exam and care
		Inlcudes medical, physician, dental
		exam and care, eye exam and
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00 prescription
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10 new; 5 refill	
Vigo Co., IN (M)	3	\$3,264.00
		5/1/04-12/31/04, includes medical,
Wabash Co., IN (M)	15	\$850.15 nurse/LPN, physician, dental exan
Wayne Co., IN (M)	Considering	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
V 1 - 177 - 1 ( )	3	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
Wells Co., IN (M)	10	\$2,802.75 exam
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	
Butler Co., KS (M)	5	Just started

	3 one time co-pay	
Caddo Parish Co., LA (MEGA)	continual maintenance	
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X	\$7,342.00
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	43200
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	Actual cost	
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X	
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	5	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$6,000.00
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	X	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	X	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	Actual cost	
Cass Co., MN (M)	5	\$800.00
Dakota Co., MN (M)	5 pretrial; full sentencec	
Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	.11/day per prescription	\$11,362.32
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	3	\$13,355.29
Itasca Co., MN (M)	Actual cost	\$1,651.00
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10	
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5	
Pennington Co., MN (M)	5	
Todd Co., MN (S)	5	
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	10	
Wright Co., MN (M)	Actual cost	
		Includes physician, dental exam and
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$20,000.00 care, eye exam and prescriptions
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	\$3.00	\$2,788.00 physician, dental exam and care
Humboldt Co., NV (M)	\$5.00	\$750.00
		Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	3	\$19,537.41 exam and care
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
		physician, dental exam and care, eye
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	5 name brand; 3 generic	\$17,116.00 exam and prescriptions
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Monmouth Co., NJ (MEGA)	3 new prescription	\$28,055.98 physician, dental exam and care
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
		physician, dental exam and care, eye
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	1	\$3,180.76 exam and prescriptions
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	5	\$1,265.00

			Includes medical, physician, dental
			exam and care, eye exam and
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5 280 00	prescriptions, barber
Clinton Co., OH (S)	Actual cost	ψ2,200.00	presemptions, cureer
Erie Co., OH (M)	6	\$1,500.00	
Highland Co., OH (S)	Actual cost	\$1,657.57	
Licking Co., OH (L)	5	Ψ1,037.37	
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	3 otc med		
Summit Co. Corr, OH (M)	3 prescription/month		
Summit Co. Con, On (w)	3 prescription/monu		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Tuscarawas Co., OH (M)	3	\$3,456.85	
Washington Co., OH (M)	3		Began 7/05
Canadian Co., OK (M)	10		Began 7/03
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Comanche Co., OK (M)	X		
1 1	Actual cost		
Custer Co., OK (S)		0	
Garvin Co., OK (M)	Actual cost		
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	X		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Osage Co., OK (M)	8		
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Rogers Co., OK (M)	8	\$744.00	
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10		
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost		
			Unknown, only in operation 1.5
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	3		months
			Controlled by DA; included in court
Woods Co., OK (S)	X		costs
			Includes medical, dental exam and
Woodward Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	\$1,084.91	care
Crook Co., OR (S)	Determined by billing		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	5		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	Actual cost		Collected by Health Departmen
	Copay if med not life		
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	sustaining		
McKean Co., PA (M)	3		
Tioga Co., PA (M)	Cost for work release inmat		
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		

3 for non-exempt meds.;	
co-pay not to exceed	Includes medical, dental exam, eye
125/yr.	\$1,159,497.00 exam
, i	(10/03-9/04) Includes physician,
	dental care, eye exam and
3	\$114,237.70 prescriptions
3	
5	\$19,752.00
	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
5	\$15,591.90 physician, dental exam and care
5	\$6,672.00 Includes medical, dental care
	Includes substance abuse testing,
5 or actual 1 non pres or	nurse/LPN, physician, dental care,
actual	\$24,782.00 eye prescriptions
10	Started 2005
If outside facility 100% of	
what insurance doesn't	
cover	Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen
Actual cost	Inmate owes/pays total to provide
6 flat fee unless cost is	1 7 1
less	\$24,677.00 Includes medical, dental exan
Actual cost; other: .25	
dose/OTC meds	\$3,040.00
Actual cost	
3; Other: medical	
supplies, otc syringe for	
diabetics	\$14,032.74 Includes medical
	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
	exam and care, eye exam and
X	\$4,633.26 prescriptions
Actual charge at MA rates	\$6,852.00
	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
	physician, dental exam and care, eye
MA cost of script	\$13,550.38 exam and prescription
•	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
	physician, dental exam and care, eye
Price charged to cc	\$29,623.00 exam and prescription
- U	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
Actual cost	\$20,000.00 exam
	co-pay not to exceed 125/yr.  3 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 7 5 or actual 1 non pres or actual 10 If outside facility 100% of what insurance doesn't cover Actual cost 6 flat fee unless cost is less Actual cost; other: .25 dose/OTC meds Actual cost 3; Other: medical supplies, otc syringe for diabetics  X Actual charge at MA rates  MA cost of script  Price charged to cc

		Includes nurse/LPN, physician, denta
Washington Co., WI (L)	10	\$8,656.00 exam

Dental Examination			
			NT /
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Dallas Co., AL (S)	\$10.00		
	10	Ф2 с00 00	Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Elmore Co., AL (M)	10	\$3,600.00	care, eye exam and prescriptions
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5		
	10	¢11,000,00	Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Shelby Co., AL (M)	10	\$11,000.00	exam
Walker Co., AL (M)	10		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Fresno Co., CA	3	\$5,000.00	physician, pharmacy, dental care
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	3	\$69,574.10	physician, pharmacy, dental care
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Medicruz		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	5	\$21,650.00	exam and presciptions
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	3		
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Pasco Co., FL (M)	10	\$117,978.17	pharmacy
			Includes nurse/LPN, medical,
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	10	\$35,044.83	pharmacy, dental care
Christian Co., IL (M)	X		
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Morgan Co., IL (S)	X		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
Peoria Co., IL (L)	10	\$10,000.00	exam and prescriptions
Platt Co., IL (S)	15		1 1
	-		
			Includes medical, pharmacy, dental
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$3,591.53	care, eye exam and prescriptions
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering	\$2,271.33	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	20		
Bartholomew Co., IN (M)	15		
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10		
Fulton Co., IN (S)	10		

### Dental Exam

Grant Co., IN (L)	15	\$3,788.68	Includes physician, dental care
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	15		1 3
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15		
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
Miami Co., IN (M)	15	\$681.70	Includes medical, physician, pharmacy dental care, eye exam and prescription
Noble Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,147.58	Includes physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye exam and prescriptions Includes medical, physician, pharmacy
Owen Co., IN (M)	15	\$3,033.61	dental care
Perry Co., IN (M)	15	\$270.00	Includes medical, physican, pharmacy, dental care
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00	Includes medical, physician, pharmacy dental care, eye exam and prescription
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10		
Vigo Co., IN (M)	15	\$255.00	
Wabash Co., IN (M)	15	\$850.15	5/1/04-12/31/04, includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician, dental exan
Wayne Co., IN (M)	Considering		
Wells Co., IN (M)	15	\$2,802.75	Includes nurse/LPN, physician, pharmacy, dental exam
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Actual cost		
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost		
Caddo Parish Co., LA (MEGA)	5		
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	\$220.00	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	Actual cost to outside provider		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	15	\$13,684.06	physician
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	42000	
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	Actual cost	0	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	X		
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	Actual cost		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	10		New fee; no data available
	5, pretrial; actual cost,		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	sentenced	<del></del>	
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	3	\$1,152.61	

### Dental Exam

Kanabec Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	0	
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	10	\$320.00	
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	\$1,500.00	Estimate
Todd Co., MN (S)	5		
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	10		
Wright Co., MN (M)	Actual cost		
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$20,000.00	care, eye exam and prescriptions
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	\$5.00	\$2,788.00	physician, pharmacy, dental care
Humboldt Co., NV (M)	\$10.00		
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$19,537.41	pharmacy, dental care
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00	exam and prescriptions
			Includes medical, physician,
			nurse/LPN, pharmacy, dental exam
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76	and care, eye exam and care
			Includes medical, physician,
			pharmacy, dental care, eye exam and
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5,280.00	prescriptions, barber
Clinton Co., OH (S)	Actual cost		
Licking Co., OH (L)	25 9what dr charges)		
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	10		
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	10		
Washington Co., OH (M)	7	Began 7/05	
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Custer Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	\$900.00	
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Osage Co., OK (M)	8		
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
	Charged to inmate		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	directly		
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10		

## Dental Exam

Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost		
, ,			Unknown; only in operation 1.5
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	8	<del></del>	months
	-		Includes medical, pharmacy, dental
Woodward Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	\$1,084.91	2
		, , ,	
Crook Co., OR (S)	Determined by billing		
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	10		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	Actual cost		Collected by Health Departmen
( )			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Washington Co., OR (L)	31	\$1,159,497.00	physician, eye exam
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	5		Includes medical, physiciar
, , ,	3 includes filling		· 1 · 2
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	cavities		
McKean Co., PA (M)	15		
Northampton Co., PA (L)	5	\$4,611.00	Includes medical
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	50	\$5,700.00	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	20	\$15,591.90	physician, pharmacy, dental care
	If outside facility,		
	100% of what		
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	insurance doesn't cover		Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	Actual cost		Inmate owes/pays total to provider
Spokane Co., WA (L)	12	24677	Includes medical, pharmacy
Dunn Co., WI (M)	X		Inmate pays
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental care, eye exam and
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	X	\$4,633.26	prescriptions
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	MA cost of service	\$13,550.38	exam and prescription
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
	Price charged to		physician, pharmacy, dental care, eye
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	county	\$29,623.00	exam and prescription
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Walworth Co., WI (L)	6	\$20,000.00	
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Washington Co., WI (L)	10	\$8,656.00	pharmacy

Dental Care			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cherokee Co., AL (M)	\$5.00	\$269.66	
Cullman Co., AL (S)	13	\$160.00	
			es physician, dental exam and
Elmore Co., AL (M)	10		ye exam and prescriptions
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5.1		es physician, pharmacy, dental, eye exam and care
Hale Co., AL (S)	10		
Lowndes Co., AL (S)	12	\$204.00	
Walker Co., AL (M)	10		
Fresno Co., CA	3		es medical, nurse/LPN, ian, dental exam and care
		Includ	es medical, nurse/LPN,
San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	3	\$69,574.10 physic	ian, pharmacy, dental exan
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Medicruz		
			es medical, nurse/LPN, ian, dental exam and care, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	10	\$21,650.00 exam	
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	5		1
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	10	\$4,989.44	
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	5 x-ray 20 temp filling ext 25 surical 35 impaction 50	Includ \$35,044.83 exam	es nurse/LPN, medical, dental
Christian Co., IL (M)	X		
, , ,		Includ	es nurse/LPN, physician,
DuPage Co., IL (M)	10	\$10,048.24 pharm	acy
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		-
McHenry Co., IL (L)	X		
Morgan Co., IL (S)	X		
		Includ	es medical, nurse/LPN,
		physic	ian, dental exam and care, eye
Peoria Co., IL (L)	10	\$10,000.00 exam	and prescriptions
Platt Co., IL (S)	15		<del>_</del>
		Includ	es medical, nurse/LPN,
		physic	ian, pharmacy, dental exam, ey
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$10,000.00 exam	and prescription

## Dental Care

Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	20	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10	
Grant Co., IN (L)	Comb w/exam	\$3,788.68 Includes physician, dental exan
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	15	
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15	
Madison Co., IN (M)	15	
		Includes medical, physician,
		pharmacy, dental exam, eye exam and
Miami Co., IN (M)	15	\$681.70 prescription
		T I
		Includes physician, dental exam and
Noble Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,147.58 care, eye exam and prescriptions
		Includes medical, physician,
Owen Co., IN (M)	15	\$3,033.61 pharmacy, dental exam
		Includes medical, physican, pharmacy
Perry Co., IN (M)	15	\$270.00 dental care
		Inlcudes medical, physician, dental
		exam and care, eye exam and
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00 prescription
Spencer Co., IN (M)	X	Check
Vigo Co., IN (M)	3	
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	
Caddo Parish Co., LA (MEGA)	5	
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X	\$274.75
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	\$576.00
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X	
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	8	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$600.00
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	actual cost	0
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	X	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	Actual cost	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	5 pretrial full sentence	
(	F F T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	Included in office visi	\$2,132.29 physician, eye prescription
Itasca Co., MN (M)	Actual cost	10
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	10	
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10	\$310.00
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	

## Dental Care

Todd Co., MN (S)	5	\$1500??
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	10	
Wright Co., MN (M)	Actual cost	
		Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$20,000.00 exam, eye exam and prescription
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	\$5.00	\$2,788.00 physician, pharmacy, dental exan
Humboldt Co., NV (M)	X	
		Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$618.00 pharmacy, dental exam
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
		physician, dental exam, eye exam and
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00 prescriptions
Hunterdon Co., NJ (M)	5	
Monmouth Co., NJ (MEGA)	5	Includes medical, pharmacy Includes pharmacy, dental care
		Includes medical, physician,
		nurse/LPN, pharmacy, dental exam,
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76 eye exam and prescriptions
		Includes medical, physician,
		nurse/LPN, pharmacy, dental exam,
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5,280.00 eye exam and care, barber
Clinton Co., OH (S)	Actual cost	
Delaware Co., OH (M)	Actual cost	
Erie Co., OH (M)	50	
Highland Co., OH (S)	Actual cost	\$274.58
Licking Co., OH (L)	X	
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	10	
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering	
Custer Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering	
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	
Osage Co., OK (M)	8	
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering	
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	Charged to inmate directly	
Rogers Co., OK (M)	8	\$80.00
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10	
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost	

## Dental Care

			Controlled by DA; included in total
Woods Co., OK (S)	X -	<del>-</del>	court costs
		*	Includes medical, pharmacy, dental
Woodward Co., OK (S)	Actual cost	\$1,084.91	exam
Crook Co., OR (S)	Determined by billing		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	1 lotaar cost	· <del>-</del>	Collected by Health Departmen
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	5 extractions		
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		
DOC, RI (State system)	3/visit 70/dentures	\$1,159,497.00	Includes medical, pharmacy, eye exan
			Includes physician, pharmacy, eye
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	15	\$114,237.70 (10/03-9/04)	exam and prescriptions
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	50	\$5,700.00	
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	20	\$15,591.90	physician, pharmacy, dental exan
Hampton Roads Reg Jail, VA (L)	10	\$6,672.00	Includes medical, pharmacy
			Includes substance abuse testing,
			nurse/LPN, physician, pharmacy, eye
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	10	\$24,782.00	prescriptions
	If outside facility 100% of		
	what insurance doesn't		
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	cover		Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	Actual cost		Inmate owes/pays total to provide:
			Collect for outside medical/mental
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	X		health/dental care
Dunn Co., WI (M)	Inmate prepays		
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam, eye exam and
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	X	\$4,633.26	prescriptions
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	Actual charge at MA rates	\$756.00	
	The state of the s		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental exam, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	MA cost of service		exam and prescription
		+,	Includes medical, nurse/LPN,
			physician, pharmacy, dental exam, eye
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	Price charged to co		exam and prescription

Eye Care Examination			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
			Includes physician, dental exam and
Elmore Co., AL (M)	\$10.00	\$3,600,00	care, eye exam and prescriptions
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5.1	Ψ3,000.00	eure, eye exam and prescription
Walker Co., AL (M)	10		
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Medicruz		
Sunta Craz co., crr (L)	Medicial		Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	10	\$21,650.00	exam and presciptions
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	Part of med fee		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	10	0	
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$3.591.53	Includes medical, dental exam and care, eye exam and prescriptions
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering	. ,	7
Fayette Co., IN (M)	15		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15		
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
Miami Co., IN (M)	15	\$681.70	Includes medical, physician, pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye prescription
Noble Co., IN (M) Perry Co., IN (M)	15 15		Includes physician, pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye prescriptions
Challes Ca. DV (M)	15	¢7.040.00	Includes medical, physician, pharmacy,
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00	dental exam and care, eye prescription
Spencer Co., IN (M)		<del></del>	
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	<del></del>	
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost	Φ225 00	
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	\$225.00	
Kalkaska Co., MI (M)	X	 #400.00	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$400.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	Actual cost 5 pretrial; full		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	sentenced		

Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	3	\$248.00	
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	\$1,500.00	
Wright Co., MN (M)	Actual cost		
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$20,000.00	exam and care, eye prescriptions
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	Sent out		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00	prescriptions
			Includes medical, physician, nurse/LPN
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	5	\$3,180.76	exam and care
			Includes medical, physician, dental
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5,280.00	exam and care, eye prescriptions, barber
Erie Co., OH (M)	50		
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	10		
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10		
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost		
Crook Co., OR (S)	Determined by billing		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician
Washington Co., OR (L)	31	\$1,159,497.00	dental exam
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	\$40-100		
McKean Co., PA (M)	15		
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering		
			Includes medical, pharmacy, dental
DOC, RI (State system)	6	\$1,159,497.00	exam
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	10	\$114,237.70 (10/03-9/04)	care, eye prescriptions
	If outside facility		
	100% of what		
	insurance doesn't		
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	cover		Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen

# Eye Care Exam

Dunn Co., WI (M)	Inmate pays		
			Includes nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	X	\$4,633.26	prescriptions
	Actual charge at MA		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	rates		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	MA cost of service	\$13,550.38	prescriptions
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	Price charged to cc	\$29,623.00	prescriptions

Eye Care Prescriptions			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Elmore Co., AL (M)	\$3.00	\$3,600.00	exam and care, eye exam
Etowah Co., AL (L)	5.1		
Walker Co., AL (M)	6		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician, pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	5	\$21,650.00	exam
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	Part of medical fee		
	OTC 8.50; family pays		
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	prescription		
Hancock Co., IL (S)	Considering		
Peoria Co., IL (L)	5	\$10,000.00	
			Includes medical, pharmacy, dental exan
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$3,591.53	and care, eye exam
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	Considering		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	15		
Madison Co., IN (M)	15		
			Includes medical, physician, pharmacy,
Miami Co., IN (M)	15	\$681,70	dental exam and care, eye exan
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Noble Co., IN (M)	15		exam and care, eye exam
Perry Co., IN (M)	15	0	
			Includes medical, physician, pharmacy,
Shelby Co., IN (M)	15	\$7,049.00	dental exam and care, eye exam
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10 new 5 refill		
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost		
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	0	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$2,000.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	Actual cost		
	5 pretrial; full		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	sentenced		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician,
Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	Included in office visi	\$2,132.29	dental care
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	3	\$960.00	

Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	5 SAA	\$1,500.00	
Wright Co., MN (M)	Actual cost		
			Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	\$20,000.00	exam and care, eye exam
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	Sent out		
			Includes medical, nurse/LPN, physician,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	10	\$17,116.00	exam
			Includes medical, physician, nurse/LPN,
			pharmacy, dental exam and care, eye
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	Actual cost		exam
			Includes medical, physician, pharmacy,
Ashland Co., OH (M)	5	\$5,280.00	dental exam and care, eye exam, barber
Clinton Co., OH (S)	Actual cost		
Delaware Co., OH (M)	Actual cost		
Highland Co., OH (S)	Actual cost		
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	3/presc/mo		
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	Actual cost		
Seminole Co., OK (S)	10		
Texas Co., OK (M)	Actual cost		
C1- C OD (C)	Determined by killing		
Crook Co., OR (S) Luzerne Co., PA (L)	Determined by billing X	<del></del>	
Washington Co., PA (M)	Considering 15		
DOC, RI (State system)	15		Includes physician, pharmacy, dental
Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	16.1	\$114,237.70 (10/03-9/04)	
Bexal Co., 1A (MEGA)	5 or actual cost; 1 non-	\$114,237.70 (10/03-9/04)	care, eye care Includes substance abuse testing,
	prescription or actual		medical, nurse/LPN, physician,
Northwestorn Dog ADC VA		¢24.792.00	, , , , ,
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	cost	\$24,782.00	pharmacy, dental care
	If outside facility		
	100% of what		
DOC, RI (State system)	insurance doesn't cover		Not a rayanya but a raimburaamar
			Not a revenue, but a reimbursemen
Dunn Co., WI (M)	Inmate pays		

# Eye Care Prescriptions

		Includes nurse/LPN, pharmace	y, dental
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	X	\$4,633.26 exam and care, eye exam	
	Actual charge at MA		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	rates		
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,	physician,
		pharmacy, dental exam and ca	ire, eye
Shawano Co., WI (L)	MA cost of service	\$13,550.38 exam	
		Includes medical, nurse/LPN,	physician,
		pharmacy, dental exam and ca	ire, eye
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	Price charged to co	\$29,623.00 exam	

## Telephone

Telephone Use			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cullman Co., AL (S)	X	\$54,000.00	Inmate telephone systen
Dallas Co., AL (S)	Pay phone	\$30,000.00	
	\$2.55/first min .35 additional		
Shelby Co., AL (M)	min	\$67,993.68	
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA)	10 phone card	\$600,000.00	
	•		Revenue goes to inmate welfare fund
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Prepay or collect	\$292,000.00	to pay for inmate programs
Broomfield Police Dept., CO (M)	1/min collect		1 7 1 2
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	Costs incurred by family		
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	Collect calls		
Christian Co., IL (M)	10 card	\$14,004.00	
Peoria Co., IL (L)	15 phone card	\$39,705.00	
Platt Co., IL (S)	X		
Saline Co., IL (M)	X	\$34,120.38	Commission
Fayette Co., IN (M)	Card		
Grant Co., IN (L)	X		
Madison Co., IN (M)	3.75/min		
	Price controlled by phone		
Miami Co., IN (M)	company		
Noble Co., IN (M)	X		
Parke Co., IN (M)	Rate varies	\$38,597.06	
Vigo Co., IN (M)	3		
	2 per call phone company		
Wayne Co., IN (M)	collects		
Wells Co., IN (M)	15 min call 3.35	\$24,000.00	
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	Collect calls		
Lucas Co., IA (S)	5 phone card		
Allegany Co., MD	0.2		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	Cards		
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	X	\$151,258.00	
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	Per minute	\$450,000.00	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$25,000.00	
Mason Co., MI (M)	Contracted		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	Vendor		Payments to GF only
Douglas Co., MN (M)	10 phone cards	\$13,250.00	
Faribault Co., MN (S)	10 card		

## Telephone

Hennepin Co. ADC, MN (L)	Collect Calls		
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	X	\$145,129.07	
Isanti Co., MN (S)	Vendor commission	\$6,655.00	
Itasca Co., MN (M)	Contracted	\$12,000.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	X		
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	Cards		
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	Collect calls		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	Collect or calling card		
Pennington Co., MN (M)	5 &10 phone cards or collect		
Todd Co., MN (S)	X	\$6,000.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	20-10-2 card?	\$12,000.00	
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	Separate rate		
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	Collect		
Ashland Co., OH (M)	Preset by phone co	\$30,000.00	
Auglaize Co., OH (M)	X	\$35,899.58	
Highland Co., OH (S)	Collect or card	\$32,169.00	
Licking Co., OH (L)	Debit Cards		
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	2.50 local .20 min		
Washington Co., OH (M)	Commission 50%	\$40,742.00	
Caddo Co., OK (M)	3.5	\$21,000.00	
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	10 card		
Garvin Co., OK (M)	26.00%	\$22,907.85	
Johnston Co., OK (S)	Collect calls		
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	X	\$12,000.00	
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	Collect calls	\$200,000.00	
Rogers Co., OK (M)	4/min	\$30,774.50	
Stephens Co., OK (M)	X	\$55,683.66	
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	1.90/min		
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	%	\$2,514.18	
Woodward Co., OK (S)	40% of call		
Crook Co., OR (S)	Collect calls		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	Collect calls	\$60,000.00	
Lane Co., OR (L)	2.35/call	\$185,905.17	
Washington Co., OR (L)	2/15 min	\$185,471.00	
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	2.07/local call	\$357,447.00	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	Deducted from acci		
Washington Co., PA (M)	X		
	1.65/local 3/long distance		
	.15/min (8am-4) .10/min		
DOC, RI (State system)	(4pm-11)	\$470,000.00	

## Telephone

Bexar Co., TX (MEGA)	4/call through contract service		
Hampton Roads Reg Jail, VA (L)	Collect calls		
			Unknown, collected by service
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	1.63/local long distance varies		provider
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	Collect calls	\$26,891.94	-
King Co., WA (MEGA)	Collect calls		
			Revenue collected is split 60% to
	Collect calls; 2 to connect;		vendor, 40% to the County Genera
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	varies local vs. long distance		Fund, and NOT the jail
	2/min charged to receiving		
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	party	\$8,221.00	
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	Collect calls	\$100,690.00	
Chippewa Co., WI (M)	Collect calls		
	4.35 to connect 10/min local		
Dunn Co., WI (M)	.35 ld	\$60,171.00	
	Contracted collect calls phone		
	service pays co %; pre-paid		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	phone cards	\$62,316.59; \$33,655.00	
Menominee Tribal DF, WI (S)	4.25/call	\$9,000.00	
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	Outside contractor		
	10 and 25 phone cards,		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	collect calls, or family prepay	\$232,794.00	
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	.50/min	\$21,790.00	
Shawano Co., WI (L)	Varies	\$40,473.53	
Walworth Co., WI (L)	5.95 call	\$110,460.00	
Washington Co., WI (L)	Contract with vendor		

Per diem			
County	<b>Amount of Fee</b>	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	2/day 14/wk	\$1,040,953.00	
Pasco Co., FL (M)	2	\$191,914.91	
LaSalle Co., IL	Considering	+ - > - 3, > - 1, > -	
McHenry Co., IL (L)	Considering		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	X	\$2,000.00	
Benzie Co., MI (S)	20/day	\$20,000.00	
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	35-53	\$732,356.50	
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	18 day sentenced		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$22,000.00	
Mason Co., MI (M)	17/day		
			Includes work release and
Menominee Co., MI (S)	20/day	\$31,254.00	weekender
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	16/day	\$51,493.00	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	44/day	\$125,000.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	30/day	\$37,025.44	
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	X 10/day check?	\$26,377.00	Includes weekender
Dakota Co., MN (M)	20 sentenced	\$51,785.00	
Douglas Co., MN (M)	20/day	\$74,846.13	
Faribault Co., MN (S)	35/day		
Freeeborn Co., MN	20/day	\$5,000.00	
	14/day work release		
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	& home monitor	\$1,107,102.02	
Itasca Co., MN (M)	20/day	\$48,438.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	20	\$4,300.00	
Lyon Co., MN (S)	20/day sentenced	\$10,000.00	
Nobles Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$6,957.00	
(2)		+	
	50/day straight time		
	person paying to do		
Pennington Co., MN (M)	time here		
Todd Co., MN (S)	20/day	\$33,000.00	
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	25/day	\$2,449.66	
Wright Co., MN (M)	20	\$110,200.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	20	\$9,000.00	

Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	Various 50/mo	\$347,398.36	
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	7/day	\$475,995.00	Includes booking
Auglaize Co., OH (M)	50/day	414321.46	
Delaware Co., OH (M)	X		
	10/day based on		
Geauga Co., OH (S)	income	0	Started 2/05
	12-52 day based		
Highland Co., OH (S)	income	\$4,251.35	
Licking Co., OH (L)	12-60		
Summit Co. Sheriff, OH (L)	Considering		
Alfalfa Co., OK (S)	26.26/day		
Canadian Co., OK (M)	30/day		
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	35		
Comanche Co., OK (M)	30/day	\$3,000.00	
Garvin Co., OK (M)	22/day	\$16,416.97	
Johnston Co., OK (S)	20		
Kay Co., OK (M)	25.5		
Kingfisher Co., OK (S)	38.71		
McCurtain Co., OK (M)	26/day		
Murray Co., OK	22.5		
Noble Co., OK (S)	34.5		
Osage Co., OK (M)	29/day		
Pawnee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	24 one time	\$200,000-\$300,000	Includes booking fee, bondin;
Pushmataha Co., OK (S)	26	0	
Rogers Co., OK (M)	28/day		No return yet
Seminole Co., OK (S)	14/day		
Seguoyah Co., OK (S)	22/day	\$7,079.05	
Stephens Co., OK (M)	15.5	\$6,500.00	
Texas Co., OK (M)	35		
			Controlled by DA; added to
Woods Co., OK (S)	43		court costs
Woodward Co., OK (S)	21.06/day	\$14,454.30	
Crook Co., OR (S)	Considering		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	60/day		New fee
Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering		
Union Co., OR (M)	Sliding scale	\$5,000.00	
Washington Co., OR (L)	60/day	\$247,026.00	
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	10/day	\$247,026.00	

### Per Diem

Franklin Co., PA (L)	10/day	\$86.088.87	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	X		
Tioga Co., PA (M)	10/day		
Hampton Roads Reg Jail, VA (L)	1/day	\$166,564.00	
Northwestern Reg ADC, VA	1		Began 2005
King Co., WA (MEGA)	For work release		
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	55/day	\$605.00	
	5/day sentenced		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	inmates not working		
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	15	\$70,196.15	

<b>Booking fee</b>			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenues	Notes
	9 11 1		
Cherokee Co., AL (M)	Considering	<b>440.000.00</b>	
Santa Cruz Co., CA (MEGA)	168.08	\$10,000.00	
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	30		Just started 7/05
Broomfield Police Department, CO (M)	Considering	**************************************	
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	10 one time		Started 2/05
Pasco Co, FL (M)	10.5	\$37,548.00	
Christian Co., IL (M)	10	\$2,690.00	
Mercer Co., IL (S)	12		
	5 first time out of co.		
Morgan Co., IL (S)	only		Out of county
Peoria Co., IL (L)	20	\$139,000.00	Paid by booking fee
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	3		
Parke Co., IN (M)	Considering		
Vigo Co., IN (M)	Considering		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	12	\$21,198.86	
Benzie Co., MI (S)	12	\$3,500.00	
Cheboygan Co., MI (M)	12	\$8,000.00	
Emmet Co., MI (M)	12	\$10,031.53	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	12	\$36,877.00	
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	12	\$62,483.56	
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X		
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	12 each booking		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$8,500.00	
Mason Co., MI (M)	12		
Menominee Co., MN (S)	12 one time	\$7,406.58	
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	12	\$14,224.00	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	12	\$35,000.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	12	\$32,996.00	
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	10	\$51,603.00	
Cass Co., MN (M)	10	\$8,078.00	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	10	\$21,390.00	
Douglas Co., MN (M)	10	\$6,550.00	
Faribault Co., MN (S)	10		
Freeborn Co., MN (S)	10	\$7,490.00	
Hennepin Co. ACF, MN (L)	25/booking	\$98,157.00	
Isanti Co., MN (S)	10	\$8,760.00	

### Booking

Itasca Co., MN (M)	10	\$17,082.00	
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	10	\$4,000.00	
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	20	\$1,980.00	
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	Considering		
Lyon Co., MN (S)	10	\$4,000.00	
Nobles Co., MN (S)	10	\$2,000.00	
Pennington Co., MN (M)	10		
Todd Co., MN (S)	10	\$4,000.00	
Wabasha Co., MN (S)	10	\$1,029.16	
Wright Co., MN (M)	10	\$24,390.00	
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	10	\$15,650.00	
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	62	\$38,206.00	
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	Various	\$1,882,844.50	
Camden Co., NJ (MEGA)	25 one time		Includes per dien
Monmouth Co., NJ (MEGA)	50	\$197,214.65	-
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	25/booking	\$61,276.77	
Somerset Co., NJ (L)	50	\$67,897.55	
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	Considering		
Ashland Co., OH (M)	30	\$16,344.00	
Clinton Co., OH (S)	30 sentenced		
Delaware Co., OH (M)	10		
Highland Co., OH (S)	25 sentenced	\$4,502.15	
Licking Co., OH (L)	10		
Alfalfa Co., OK (S)	30 per arrest		
Caddo Co., OK (M)	27	\$6,266.87	
Canadian Co., OK (M)	20		
Cherokee Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Cimarron Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Johnston Co., OK (S)	37.5		
Kay Co., OK (M)	35		
Major Co., OK (S)	30		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering		
Noble Co., OK (S)	25		
Osage Co., OK (M)	15 in 15 out		
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	40 one time	\$200,000-300,000	Includes bonding, per dien
Pushmataha Co., OK (S)	21.5	0	
Texas Co., OK (M)	35		
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	Considering		
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	Considering		
Woodward Co., OK (S)	21.06	\$9,856.60	
Crook Co., OR (S)	Considering		

### Booking

Lane Co., OR (L)	Considering		
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	Considering		
, ( )	2	Collected \$84,059.08; billed	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	50	\$163,000	
Washington Co., PA (L)	Considering		
Weber Co., UT (L)	Considering		
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	Considering		
Buckley Police Dept., WA (S)	10	\$800.00	
Kent WA Corrections Facility, WA	40		Started 2005
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	10	\$52,715.13	
		Assessed \$296,500; Collected	
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	100	\$96,205	
	Federal rate: 69.33		
Spokane Co., WA (L)	regular inmate: 89.12	\$275,000.00	
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	50	\$62,546.00	
Burnett Co., WI (S)	30 sentenced only	\$264,800.00	
Dunn Co., WI (M)	Considering		
Kenosha Co., WI (M)	20	\$48,916.94	
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	25	\$17,687.69	
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	25	\$82,359.00	
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	20	\$2,404.00	
Walworth Co., WI (L)	20		Just started in 2005
	25 for each		
	confinement of		
Washington Co., WI (L)	sentenced cases	\$72,411.00	

Photocopying			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Walker Co., AL (M)	Considering		
Santa Cruz Co., CA (L)	Considering		
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	X	\$96,000.00	Includes notary service
Broomfield Police Dept., CO (M)	\$1/page		-
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	.15 after first 25		
Volusia Co., FL (MEGA)	.15 legal .05 foia .15 medical records	\$555.74	
Madison Co., IL (L)	only		
Mason Co., IL (S)	0.1		
Mercer Co., IL (S)	0.1	\$10.00	
Peoria Co., IL (L)	0.1	\$143.00	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	0.1	\$140.00	
Fulton Co., IN (S)	0.1		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	0.25		
Noble Co., IN (M)	0.25	\$96.00	
Parke Co., IN (M)	1		Part of commissary
Wells Co., IN (M)	0.1	\$5.00	J
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	0.5		
Lucas Co., IA (S)	0.25		
Butler Co., KS (M)	0.5		Just started collecting
Allegany Co., MD	0.2	\$80.00	
Benzie Co., MI (S)	0.1	\$12.30	
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	0.5		
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	1 first p .1 add		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$200.00	
Mason Co., MI (M)	1.5		
Menominee Co., MI (S)	2 page	0	
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	1 first p .05 add		New fee; no data available
	First 20 free (legal		
Dakota Co., MN (M)	only) .5 p. more		
Kanabec Co., MN (S)	0.25		
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	0.15		
Nobles Co., MN (S)	0.25		
Todd Co., MN (S)	0.25		
Wright Co., MN (M)	0.25		
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	0.5	\$350.00	

# Photocopying

Humboldt Co., NV (M)	0.25		
Atlantic Co., NJ (MEGA)	Various	\$10,662.99	
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	10-20 .10 >20 .05	0	
Somerset Co., NJ (L)	0.1	\$59.87	
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	0.05	\$26.00	
Summit Co. Corr., OH (M)	0.05		
Comanche Co., OK (M)	0.25	\$50.00	
Osage Co., OK (M)	0.1		
Pushmataha Co., OK (S)	0.1		
Seminole Co., OK (S)	0.1		
Tulsa Co., OK (MEGA)	0.1		
Crook Co., OR (S)	0.25		
Josephine Co., OR (M)	0.5		Insignificant
Washington Co., OR (L)	6/10 pp	\$13,142.00	
DOC, RI (State system)	0.1	\$13.00	
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	.14/page	\$600.00	
McKean Co., PA (M)	0.25		
Washington Co., PA (M)	0.1		
	.05/copy .25 med		
DOC, RI (State system)	records	\$6,518.00	
Weber Co., UT (L)	0.25		
Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	0.1	\$254.33	
Hampton Roads Reg Jail, VA (L)	0.15	\$1,508.00	Includes postage
	.15 unless court		
	ordered for pro se		
King Co., WA (MEGA)	representation		
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	0.15		
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	0.1 non-legal		
Burnett Co., WI (S)	0.25		
Dunn Co., WI (M)	0.25	\$156.00	
Eau Claire Co., WI (L)	0.25	4500	
Green Lake Co., WI (S)	0.25		
Jefferson Co., WI (M)	0.25	\$84.75	
	.25 page .50 page med		
Kenosha Co., WI (M)	info	\$1,013.38	
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	0.15		
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	1		
Outagamie Co., WI (L)	0.25	\$200.00	
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	0.5	\$675.00	
Shawano Co., WI (L)	0.25	\$88.25	
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	0.5	\$50.00	

# Photocopying

Washington Co., WI (L)	0.25 legal only		
washington Co., wi (L)	0.23 legal only	<del></del>	

Barber/Hair Care				
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes	
County	Amount of Fee	Amiuai Revenue, 2004	Tious	
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA)	0.75	\$16,000.00		
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	X	no revenue		
DuPage Co., IL (M)	7.5			
Hancock Co., IL (S)	\$10.00	10		
Livingston Co., IL (M)	Considering			
Madison Co., IL (L)	3.5		Paid to barber	
Mason Co., IL (S)	6.5	\$175.50		
McHenry Co., IL (L)	9			
Mercer Co., IL (S)	10	0		
Platt Co., IL (S)	8			
Schuyler Co., IL (S)	X		Paid to barber	
Shelby Co., IL (S)	10			
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	10			
Fayette Co., IN (M)	8			
Grant Co., IN (L)	7	\$763.00		
Kosciusko Co., IN (L)	9			
Madison Co., IN (M)	8			
Miami Co., IN (M)	5	\$500.00		
Noble Co., IN (M)	7		Paid to barber	
Parke Co., IN (M)	7	0		
Spencer Co., IN (M)	10			
Vigo Co., IN (M)	7			
Wabash Co., IN (M)	7	\$329.00	Paid to barber	
Wayne Co., IN (M)	6			
Wells Co., IN (M)	6	0	Paid to barber	
Buena Vista Co., IA (S)	10			
Lucas Co., IA (S)	Actual cost			
Benzie Co., MI (S)	Actual cost	\$155.00		
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	8			
Kalamazoo Co., MI (L)	12			
Kalkaska, Co., MI (M)	X			
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$1,500.00		
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	10	0		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	10 to barber		Paid to barber	
Dakota Co., MN (M)	5			
Faribault Co., MN (S)	8			

### Barber Hair Care

Kanabec Co., MN (S)	Actual cost	40			
Le Sueur Co., MN (S)	X		Paid to barber		
Lincoln Co., MN (S)	10				
Nobles Co., MN (S)	1 clipper 9 barber				
Wright Co., MN (M)	X		Paid to barber		
Yellow Medicine Co., MN (S)	15-20	\$120.00			
Ocean Co., NJ (L)	X		Paid to barber		
Ashland Co., OH (M)	10	\$5,280.00	Includes medical, physician, pharma	cy, dental exam and	care, eye
Auglaize Co., OH (M)	X	\$1,199.00			
Clinton Co., OH (S)	11				
Delaware Co., OH (M)	10	\$0.00			
Geauga Co., OH (S)	10		Paid to barber		
Highland Co., OH (S)	15	\$342.04			
Licking Co., OH (L)	7				
Marshall Co., OK (M)	Considering				
McCurtain Co., OK (M)	5		Started 2005		
Crook Co., OR (S)	10				
Jefferson Co., OR (S)	11				
Berks Co., PA (MEGA)	10	\$3,372.00			
McKean Co., PA (M)	7.5				
Weber Co., UT (L)	10				
Kitsap Co., WA (M)	11		Paid to barber		
Puyallup City Jail, WA (S)	Actual cost	Inmate owes/pays total to provider			
Whatcom Co., WA (M)	15		Provided by commissary		
Burnett Co., WI (S)	10	\$100.00			
Dunn Co., WI (M)	12 to barber		Fees go to provider (outside vendor		
Manitowoc Co., WI (M)	X				
Monroe Co., WI (MEGA)	10				
Sawyer Co., WI (S)	12	\$288.00			
Shawano Co., WI (L)	11				
St. Croix Co., WI (M)	11	\$837.00			
Washington Co., WI (L)	8 for private service				

Bonding			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Cullman Co., AL (S)	Considering		
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	\$10.00	\$62,140.00	
Clark Co., IL (S)	10	\$3,805.00	
Henry Co., IL (M)	14	\$8,800.00	
LaSalle Co., IL (M)	X	\$21,740.00	
Livingston Co., IL (M)	7.5	\$667.00	
McHenry Co., IL (L)	28	\$111,184.00	
Peoria Co., IL (L)	18	\$165,000.00	
Platt Co., IL (S)	20		
Saline Co., IL (M)	14	\$20,515.00	
Elkhart Co., IN (L)	5		
LaGrange Co., IN (S)	5	Began July 2005	
Miami Co., IN (M)	5	Began 2005	
Spencer Co., IN (M)	5		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	10	\$8,429.00	
Grand Traverse Co., MI (M)	10/wrnt	\$5,5159	
Manistee Co., MI (M)	X	\$3,200.00	
Van Buren Co., MI (M)	10/wrnt	\$2,580.00	
St. Louis Co., MO (MEGA)	14	\$7,229.00	
Geauga Co., OH (S)	3		Started 2/05
Licking Co., OH (L)	X		
Alfalfa Co., OK (S)	25		
Garvin Co., OK (M)	25	\$2,942.00	
Kay Co., OK (M)	37.5		
Major Co., OK (S)	25		
Marshall Co., OK (M)	25		
Noble Co., OK (S)	25		
Osage Co., OK (M)	X		
			Includes booking fee,
Pottawatomie Co., OK (S)	40 one time	\$200,000-\$300,000	per diem
Rogers Co., OK (M)	25/bond	\$1,500.00	
Texas Co., OK (M)	25		
Wagoner Co., OK (S)	25	\$1,906.20	
Woodward Co., OK (S)	25		
Weber Co., UT (L)	Considering		

# Bonding

	10 per bond to other	
Eau Claire Co., WI (L)	agencies	\$3,000.00

Release escort			
County	Amount of Fee	Annual Revenue, 2004	Notes
Elmore Co., AL (M)	\$20/hr off duty job		
Walker Co., AL (M)	100	500	
	800-1000 (miles/ hours)	\$1,900 FY 04/05	
Los Angeles Co., CA (MEGA) San Diego Co., CA (MEGA)	` ,	* *	
San Mateo Co., CA (MEGA)	Based on deputy salary  Cost of security	\$11,009.80	
, , ,		<u></u>	
Santa Clara Co., CA (MEGA)	500-1050	\$10,000.00	
Arapahoe Co., CO (L)	240		
	Deposit 1000-3000 add fees		
Miami-Dade Co., FL (MEGA)	based on risk level		
Palm Beach Co. Corr., FL (MEGA)	240/4 hours/2 deputies	\$1,920.00	
Pasco Co., FL (M)	X		
Williamson Co., IL (M)	X		
Fulton Co., IN (S)	Funeral mile/staff salary		
Madison Co., IN (M)	25/hr to officer		
Allegan Co., MI (M)	X		
Kent Co., MI (MEGA)	X		
Manistee Co., MI (M)	Considering		
Montcalm Co., MI (M)	Actual	0	
St. Clair Co., MI (L)	X		
	X hourly wage and fringe for		
Washtenaw Co., MI (L)	county		
	Full cost 2 deputies & vehicle		No fees collected; none tool
Dakota Co., MN (M)	500 min		advantage
Wright Co., MN (M)	.405 /mile and officer wages		
Humboldt Co., NV (M)	Salary x hours		
Monmouth Co., NJ (MEGA)	100 funerals	\$800.00	
	50 transport personal medical	7 0 0 0 0 0	
Buncombe Co., NC (L)	appts only	0	
Lane Co., OR (L)	145/hour for 2 deputies	>	Unknown—very rare even
Luzerne Co., PA (L)	X		Charleton very face even
Euzerne Co., 171 (E)	- A		
McKean Co., PA (M)	Deputy salary and vehicle use	0	
DOC, RI (State system)	33/hour four hr min .405/mile	0	
Weber Co., UT (L)	X		
Blue Ridge Regional Jail Authority, VA	18/hr officer	\$1,916.00	

### Release Escort

Fairfax Co., VA (MEGA)	Families prepay	\$451.00	
King Co., WA (MEGA)	X		